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CHAIRMAN AND 

MANAGING AGENT'S

REPORT

Theim Wai @ Serge Pun
Chairman & Managing Agent

Dear Shareholders,

Eighteen years have passed since we started our business. Throughout these years, 
FMI Co., Ltd. has experienced favorable times as well as challenging periods. In 
both circumstances we have been able to capitalize on opportunities to develop 

our company and have remained profitable. I am proud to report that under the proper 
guidance of the Board of Directors and Advisors, and the competence of our managers as 
well as support from you, our esteemed shareholders, the company has completed another 
successful and profitable year. We shall be paying a satisfactory level of dividend for this 
year which marks the 18th consecutive year of dividend payments. We can indeed say that 
it is an excellent track record for a public company.
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Performance for the Year 2009-2010

For the financial year 2009-2010, your company 
reported an income of Ks. 1,114 million (last year: 
Ks. 1,112 million). Net profit for the year was Ks. 812 
million, a Ks. 13 million increase over the preceding 
year. 

The sale of two investments during the year, namely 
Chinthe Concrete Industries Ltd. and Myanmar 
Concrete Industries Ltd., contributed Ks. 103 million 
to the income of the year, representing 9.2% of 
our total income. The remainder of our income 
was derived mainly from FMI Syndication Ltd., the 
Automobile Division and a significant contribution 
from FMI Garden Development Ltd. Other entities 
were also able to pay dividends to the company in 
varying degrees.

Dividend Payment

Your Board of Directors has recommended a cash 
dividend of Ks.125 per share or 12.5% of our par 
value for the financial year 2009-2010. I trust that 
this recommendation will be supported and approved 
by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. 

New Opportunities

As you are all aware, our country is now at a very 
important juncture, with hope for a better and more 
open economic climate in the years to come. There 
is every reason to believe that a stable political 
environment will spur economic activities in a 
broad sense. Companies that are geared to invest 
in strategic businesses will benefit most from the 
upsurge of these economic activities. Companies that 

are properly managed and possess a high quality of 
management resources will no doubt benefit most. 

For this reason, FMI Co., Ltd. has stepped up its 
operational mode in the past year from a purely 
passive investment company to become more active in 
business operations. We have appointed U Linn Myaing 
as our new Chief Operating Officer and augmented 
our management staff in order to manage our day-
to-day operations more effectively and efficiently. 
We believe that these changes will better position us 
to take on new opportunities that are emerging and 
enable us to capitalize on the years of experience and 
goodwill established over the past 18 years.

New Projects Undertaken

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the 
company has embarked upon several new projects, 
which are intended to have a significant impact on our 
performance over the coming years. 

Firstly, after more than a year of planning and 
meticulous preparation, the company, in partnership 
with the SPA Group, has launched our newest real 
estate project – the Thanlyin Star City. This middle-
class housing project is planned to be one of the 
most desirable mass housing projects in the city with 
more than 6,000 residential units upon completion. 
It will include modern lifestyle amenities, such as 
uninterrupted lift services, electricity supply, and 
an abundance of recreational facilities including 
lush landscape gardens for the use of residents. 
Supported by a full range of support facilities, such 
as supermarkets, shops, restaurants and public 
transport, the Thanlyin Star City will set a new 
benchmark in urban living, all at affordable prices.
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The construction works for the first phase of Thanlyin 
Star City has commenced with the auspicious ground 
breaking ceremony in May of this year and piling works 
are now underway. Sales of the units commenced in 
October offering the first batch of residential units to 
FMI shareholders at a discounted price.

Secondly, we have secured the sole distributorship of 
Dongfeng trucks for Myanmar for a period of 10 years. 
The strategic cooperation agreement signed recently 
calls for the eventual establishment of an assembly 
plant in Myanmar to produce a variety of trucks and 
transport vehicles. We are very excited about this 
venture as we consider the demand for transport 
vehicles to grow exponentially as the economy takes 
an upward turn in the near future. This venture is 
undertaken in collaboration with the SPA Group.

Our automobile division performed admirably in the 
past ten years and has contributed significantly to 
our sustained profitability. This addition of Dongfeng 
brand trucks will be an important addition to our 
existing automobile business portfolio enlarging 
the breath and depth of our positioning in the 
marketplace. In order for us to successfully undertake 
this new opportunity, we have incorporated a new 
China Automobile Division and have recruited capable 
personnel to manage this business. We will also be 
building new showrooms for our range of products. I 
am confident that we will witness the positive impact 
of this new business to our overall performance in the 
very near future.

Issuance of New Preferential Shares

Another new and ambitious project undertaken is the 
decision to issue a new class of preferential shares of 
the company. This was launched in October 2010 and 
was very well received by shareholders. The proceeds 
from the new preference shares will be utilized 
to provide assistance to home buyers in Thanlyin 
Star City who requires a 5-year installment plan, 
without which they would not be able to afford the 
purchase of a new home. Preference Share holders 
will enjoy returns on their investment independent 
of the company’s operation and is well suited for 
shareholders who are seeking a safe and steady 
income from their investment. We had organized 
several seminars to explain the offer in detail since 
October and will continue to provide information 
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Yours Sincerely,

Theim Wai @ Serge Pun
Chairman & Managing Agent

to shareholders from time to time as each batch of 
preferential shares become available. I would just 
like to emphasize here that this is a very important 
milestone in the development of our company and 
will provide substantial benefits to the company and 
shareholders alike in the years to come. Your support 
to this scheme is very much appreciated.

The detailed report on the different sectors of our 
business is reported in the following sections of the 
Annual Report. As always, I stand available to interact 
with any shareholder that may wish to discuss ways 
to improve the performance of our company and take 
this opportunity to thank our Honorary Advisors, 
Directors and staff for the outstanding contributions 
they have made over the past year. 

I would like to pay special tribute to Col. Win Maung 
(Retired), the Chairman of our Advisory Board who 
passed away earlier this year. Col. Win Maung was 
instrumental in the formation of our company and 
served unselfishly and voluntarily from the first day of 
our inception to the end of his life. His contribution to 
our company was immeasurable and shareholders will 
remember fondly his chairing of our Annual General 
Meetings for every of the past 17 years.  He will be 
deeply missed by all of us. In his stead, U Maung 
Maung Soe Tint has kindly consented to act as the 
Chairman of our Advisory Committee.

We are committed to excellence in our work and 
will continue to discharge our obligations to our 
shareholders diligently and conscientiously.

" . . . I am proud to report that under 

the proper guidance of the Board 

of Directors and Advisors, and the 

competence of our managers as well 

as support from you, our esteemed 

shareholders, the company has 

completed another successful and 

profitable year . . . "
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a½SUvmrnfhESpfrsm;wGif ydkrdkaumif;rGefyGifhvif;onfh pD;yGm;a&; 

tajctaeudk arQmfvifhEkdifonfhta&;BuD;aom taetxm;wGif 

uRefawmfwkdY\ EkdifiHawmfonf ,cka&muf½SdaeNyD jzpfonfudk 

tm;vkH;todyif jzpfygonf/ wnfNidrfonfh EkdifiHa&;tajctae 

onf pD;yGm;a&;vIyf½Sm;rIrsm;udk us,fus,fjyefYjyefY jzpfay:ap 

vdrfhrnf[k ,kHMunfMu&rnf jzpfygonf/ r[mAsK[majrmuf 

pD;yGm;a&;vkyfief;rsm;wGif &if;ESD;jr§yfESH&ef toifhjyifqifxm; 

Muonfh ukrÜPDrsm;taejzifh ,if;pD;yGm;a&; wkd;wufvIyf½Sm;rI 

rsm;\ tusdK;aus;Zl;udk trsm;qkH; cHpm;Mu&rnfom jzpfygonf/ 

pepfwus pDrHtkyfcsKyfxm;½SdNyD; tkyfcsKyfrIt&if;tjrpf tqifhtwef; 

jrifhrm;aom ukrÜPDrsm;onf tusdK;tjrwftrsm;qkH; cHpm;Mu& 

rnfrSm oHo,jzpfzG,f&mr½Sdyg/

okdYjzpfí FMI ukrÜPDonf NyD;cJhonfhESpfu ,if;\vkyfief; 

aqmif½GufrIykHo@mefudk &if;ESD;jr§yfESHrIcsnf;oufouf tae 

txm;rS pD;yGm;a&;vkyfief;rsm;wGif ydkrdkwuf<upGm yg0ifaqmif 

½GufEkdifap&ef taetxm;okdY wqifh wufvSrf;cJhygonf/ 

aeYw"l0vkyfief;rsm;udk ydkrkdxda&mufpGm pDrHaqmif½GufEkdif&ef 

twGuf OD;vif;NrdKif tm; Chief Operating Officer tjzpfcefY 

tyfcJhNyD; pDrHtkyfcsKyfa&; 0efxrf;rsm;udkvnf; tiftm;jznfh 

wif;cJhygonf/ jzpfay:vmvsuf½Sdaom tcGifhtvrf; opfrsm;udk 

trdt&&,lEkdif&efESifh vGefcJhonfh(18)ESpfwmumv twGif;u 

&½SdcJhonfh tawGUtBuKHrsm;tay: tjrwfxkwfEkdif&eftwGuf 

,if;tajymif;tvJrsm;onf uREkfyfwkdYudk ydkrdkaumif;rGefonfh 

taetxm;udk &½Sdaprnf[k ,kHMunfygonf/

b@ma&;ESpfukefqkH;NyD;aemuf a½SUvmrnfhESpfrsm;wGif uRefawmf 

wkdY\ pGrf;aqmifrItay: odomxif½Sm;onfh tusdK;oufa&muf 

rI½Sdap&ef &nf½G,fxm;onfh pDrHudef;topftcsdKUudk ukrÜPD 

taejzifh taumiftxnfazmf aqmif½Gufvsuf½Sdygonf/

 

OD;pGmwifjy&ygvQif FMI ukrÜPDonf SPA tkyfpkESifhyl;aygif;um 

wpfESpfausmfMum pepfwus pDrHjyifqifNyD;aemuf uRefawmfwkdY\ 

topfqkH;aom oefvsifMu,fpiftdrf&mpDrHudef;udk pwifvkdufNyD 

jzpfygonf/ ,if;tv,ftvwfwef;pm; tdrf&mpDrHudef;onf 

pDrHudef;vkH;0NyD;pD;oGm;onfhtcg vlaetdrfcef; (6000)ausmf½Sd 

NyD; oefvsifNrdKUwGif vltrsm;pkaexkdifEkdifrnfh tdrf&mpDrHudef; 

wpfck jzpfap&eftwGuf pDrHxm;½Sdygonf/ tdrf&mpDrHudef; 

tpk½S,f,m½Sifrsm;cifAsm; -

uRefawmfwkdYtaejzifh pD;yGm;a&;vkyfief;pwifcJhonfrSm 

(18)ESpfausmfcJhNyD jzpfygonf/ tqdkyg ESpfrsm; 

twGif; FMI ukrÜPDonf rdrdwkdYtwGuf tm;omonfh tcsdef 

rsm;omru pdefac:rIESifh &ifqkdifcJh&onfh tcsdefrsm;ESifhvnf; 

BuKHawGUcJh&ygonf/ okdY&mwGif xdktajctae (2)rsdK;pvkH;wGif 

ukrÜPD zGHYNzdK;wkd;wuf ap&eftwGuf &½SdonfhtcGifhtvrf;rsm;tay: 

tcGihfaumif;,lEkdifcJhNyD; ukrÜPDtaejzifh tjrwf&½Sdap&ef aqmif 

½GufEkdifcJhygonf/ 'g½kdufwmtzGJUESifh tBuHay;yk*¾dKvfwdkY\ rSefuef 

oifhavsmfaom vrf;ñTefrI? refae*smrsm;\ vkyfief;uRrf;usifrIESifh 

av;pm;tyfaom tpk½S,f,m½SifwkdY\ tm;ay;yHhydk;rIwkdYaMumifh 

ukrÜÜPDtaejzifh atmifjrifNyD; tjrwftpGef;&½Sdonfh ESpfwpfESpf 

udk ausmfjzwfEkdifcJhaMumif; *kPf,l0rf;ajrmufpGm tpDt&ifcH 

tyfygonf/ tjrwfa0pkrsm; qufwkdufcGJa0ay;onfh (18)ESpf 

jynfhajrmufaom ,ckESpftwGufvnf; auseyfzG,f&m tqifh 

½Sdonfh tjrwfa0pkrsm;udk cGJa0ay;oGm;OD;rSm jzpfygonf/ þ 

tcsufonf trsm;ydkifukrÜPDwpfcktwGuf tvGefaumif;rGefonfh 

tpOftvm rSwfwrf;wpf&yfjzpfonf[k ajymEkdifygonf/

FMI ukrÜPDonf 2009-2010 b@ma&;ESpftwGuf 0ifaiG 

usyf 1ç114 oef; (,cifESpf usyf 1ç112 oef;) &½SdcJhygonf/ 

tom;wiftjrwfaiGtaejzifh usyf 812 oef; &½SdcJhNyD;? vGefcJh 

onfhESpf ESifhpmvQif usyf 13 oef; ydkygonf/ Chinthe 

Concrete Industries Ltd. ESifh Myanmar Concrete 

Industries Ltd. wkdYudk a&mif;cs&mrS usyf 103 oef; 0ifaiG&½SdcJh&m 

,ckESpf 0ifaiGtm;vkH;\ 9.2% jzpfygonf/ þ0ifaiGrsm;udk 

t"dutm;jzifh FMI Syndication Ltd. ESifh Automobile 

Division wkdYrS &½SdcJhjyD; FMI Garden Development Ltd. 

xHrSvnf; xl;jcm;onfh 0ifaiGyrmPudk&½SdcJhygonf/ tjcm;aom 

ukrÜPDrsm;taejzifhvnf; FMI ukrÜPDodkY tjrwfaiGrsm;udk 

twdkif;twmtoD;oD;tvkduf ay;pGrf;EkdifcJhMuygonf/ 

'g½dkdufwmtzGJUtaejzifh b@ma&;ESpf 2009-2010 twGuf 

½S,f,mwpfpkvQif tjrwfa0pk usyf 125 (odkY) rl&if;wefzkd;\ 

12.5% udk aiGom;jzifhcGJa0ay;&ef tBuHjyKxm;½Sdygonf/ ,if; 

tBuHjyKcsufudk tpk½S,f,m½Sifrsm;taejzifh vmrnfhESpfywfvnf 

taxGaxG tpnf;ta0;wGif axmufcHtwnfjyK ay;Muvdrfhrnf 

[k ,kHMunfygonf/
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wGif "gwfavSum;0efaqmifrIrsm;ESifh vQyfppfrD;wdkYudk tjywf 

tawmufr½Sdap&ef aqmif½Gufxm;rnfjzpfNyD; wkdufcef;aeolrsm; 

twGuf om,mvSyaom yef;NcHrsm;tygt0if tyef;ajz&ef 

ae&mtrsm;tjym;yg½Sdonfh acwfrDvlaerI tokH;taqmifrsm; 

½Sdrnfjzpfygonf/ plygrm;uuf? aps;qkdifrsm;? pm;aomufqkdifrsm;? 

trsm;okH; o,f,lydkYaqmifa&;0efaqmifrI ponfwkdYyg0ifonfh 

oefvsifMu,fpifNrdKUawmfonf NrdKUjyaexkdifrI pHerlemtopfwpfck 

jzpfvmrnfjzpfNyD; tm;vkH;udk wwfEkdifonfhaps;EIef;jzifh &½SdMu 

rnfjzpfygonf/

oefvsifMu,fpifNrdKUawmf\ yxrtqifh wnfaqmufa&; 

vkyfief;onf ,ckESpf arv twGif;u usif;yjyKvkyfcJhonfh 

tkwfjrpfcs r*Fvmtcrf;tem;jzifh pwifcJhNyD; ,cktcg tkwfjrpf 

ykdif½kduf vkyfief;rsm;udk aqmif½Gufvsuf½SdaeNyD jzpfygonf/ 

aetdrf cef;rsm; a&mif;csjcif;udk atmufwkdbmv wGif pwifcJhNyD; 

yxrtokwf aetdrfcef;rsm;udk FMI tpk½S,f,m½Sifrsm;tm; 

oufomonfh aps;EIef;jzifh a&mif;csvsuf½Sdygonf/ 

'kwd,tcsuftaejzifh uRefawmfwkdYonf Dongfeng ukefwif 

um;rsm;udk (10)ESpfwmumvtwGif; jrefrmEkdifiHwGif jzefYjzL; 

a&mif;cs&ef wpfOD;wnf;udk,fpm;vS,ftjzpf cefYtyfjcif;cHxm;&NyD; 

jzpfaMumif; wifjyvkdygonf/ rMumrDu vufrSwfa&;xkd;cJhonfh 

r[mAsK[majrmuf yl;aygif;aqmif½Gufa&; oabmwlnDcsuf 

pmcsKyft& aemiftcg ukefwifESifho,f,lydkYaqmifa&; armfawmf 

,mOf trsdK;rsdK; xkwfvkyfa&;tvkyf½kH xlaxmifoGm;&ef ½Sdygonf/  

rMumrDumvwGif pD;yGm;a&;wkd;wuf aumif;rGefvmrnfjzpfonf 

ESifhtrQ o,f,lydkYaqmifa&; armfawmf,mOf 0,fvkdtm;onf 

vnf; tqaygif;rsm;pGm wdk;wufvmvdrfhrnf[k ,lq&yg 

ojzifh þvkyfief;ESifh ywfoufNyD; uRefawmfwkdYtaejzifh rsm;pGm 

pdwfvIyf½Sm;vsuf ½Sdaeygonf/ þvkyfief;onf SPA tkyfpkESifh 

yl;aygif;aqmif½Guf taumiftxnfazmfvsuf½Sdonhf vkyfief; 

wpfckjzpfygonf/ 

vGefcJhonfh (10)ESpfwmumvtwGif; uRefawmfwkdY\ armfawmf 

,mOf vkyfief;Xmeonf csD;rGrf;tHhMozG,f aumif;avmufatmif 

pGrf;aqmifEkdifcJhNyD; ukrÜPDtaejzifh a&½SnftjrwfpGef; &½Sda&; 

twGuf odomxif½Sm;pGm ulnDyHhydk;ay;EkdifcJhygonf/ Dongfeng 

ukefwifum;rsm; xyfwkd;0ifa&mufvmjcif;onf vuf½Sdarmf 

awmf,mOf pD;yGm;a&;vkyfief;twGuf ta&;ygonfh xyfwkd;rI 

wpf&yfjzpfNyD;? aps;uGuftwGif;wGif uRefawmfwkdY &,lxm;onfh 

taetxm;udk ydkrdkus,fjyefYvmaprnf jzpfygonf/ þtcGihf 

tvrf;opfudk atmifjrifpGm&,lEkdif&eftwGuf w½kwf armfawmf 

,mOf Xmeopfwpfckudk zGJUpnf;xlaxmifcJhNyD; vkyfief;pDrH 

tkyfcsKyf&ef 0efxrf;aumif;rsm;udkvnf; cefYtyfxm;½SdNyD; 

jzpfygonf/ xkwfukeftrsdK;rsdK;udk cif;usif;jyo&eftwGuf 

ta&mif;jycef;rsm;vnf; wnfaqmufoGm;rnf jzpfygonf/ þ 

pD;yGm;a&; vkyfief;opfonf rMumrDumvtwGif; uRefawmf 

wkdY\ pGrf;aqmifrItay: tjyKoabmaqmifonfh tusdK;ouf 

a&mufrI½Sdvmrnfudk awGU½SdMu&vdrfhrnf[k ,kHMunfygonf/

 

OD;pm;ay;½S,f,mopfrsm; xkwfa0a&mif;csjcif;onf ukrÜPD 

taejzifh aqmif½Gufvsuf½Sdonfh aemufxyf pDrHudef;opfwpf&yf 

jzpfygonf/ þpDrHudef;udk 2010 ckESpf? atmufwkdbmv 

wGif pwifcJh&m ½S,f,m½Sifrsm;\ vufcHtm;ay;rIudk &½SdcJh 

ygonf/ OD;pm;ay;½S,f,mopfrsm; a&mif;cs&½SdaiGudk oefvsif 

Mu,fpiftdrf&m vlaetdrfcef;0,f,lolrsm; tdrfwefzkd;udk (5)

ESpft&pfuspepfjzifh ay;acsoGm;Edkif&eftwGuf okH;pGJoGm;rnf 

jzpfygonf/ þuJhokdY ulnDyHhydk;jcif;rjyKygu ,if;wkdYtaejzifh 

aetdrfopfrsm; 0,f,lEkdifpGrf;½SdMuvdrfhrnf r[kwfyg/ OD;pm;ay; 

½S,f,m½Sifrsm;taejzifh ukrÜPD\vkyfief;&yfrsm;ESifh roufqkdifbJ 

,if;wkdY &if;ESD;jr§yfESHxm;rI\ tusdK;tjrwfudk vGwfvyfpGm 

cHpm;Mu&rnfjzpfygonf/ &if;ESD;jr§yfESHxm;½SdrIrS pdwfcs&NyD; 

ykHrSef0ifaiG &½Sdvkdolrsm;twGuf þpepfonf toifhavsmfqkH; 

jzpfaMumif; ajymMum;vkdygonf/ uRefawmfwkdYtaejzifhh atmuf 

wkdbmv rSpí ½S,f,m½Sifrsm;ESifh awGUqkHum tao;pdwf 

½Sif;vif;ajymjyvsuf½SdNyD;? OD;pm;ay;½S,f,m xkwfa0a&mif;cs 

onfhtcgwdkif; tpk½S,f,m½Sifrsm;tm; qufvuftoday; 
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taMumif;Mum; oGm;rnfjzpfygonf/ þ aqmif½Gufcsufonf 

uRefawmfwkdY ukrÜPDtwGuf ta&;ygaom zGHUNzdK;wkd;wufrI orkdif; 

rSwfwkdifwpf&yfjzpfNyD; a½SUvmrnfhESpfrsm;wGif tpk½S,f,m½Sifrsm; 

twGuf tusdK;rsm;pGm jzpfxGef;apvdrfhrnf[k ajymMum;vkdygonf/ 

odkYjzpfí þpDrHudef;udk tm;ay;axmufcHrItwGuf rsm;pGm 

aus;Zl;wif½Sdygonf/

uRefawmfwkdY\ pD;yGm;a&;vkyfief;qkdif&m u@toD;oD;ESifh 

ywfoufonfh tao;pdwftpDt&ifcHcsufwdkYudk ESpfywfvnf 

tpDt&ifcHpmwGif tcef;vdkuf wifjyxm;½Sdygonf/ ukrÜPD\ 

pGrf;aqmifrI ydkrdkwkd;wuf aumif;rGefap&ef aqG;aEG;tBuHjyKvkdonfh 

tpk½S,f,m½Sifrsm;½Sdygu uRefawmfhtaejzifh vufcHawGUqkH 

aqG;aEG;&ef tNrJtoifh½SdygaMumif;ESihf NyD;cJhonfhESpftwGif; 

xl;jcm;ajymifajrmufpGm pGrf;aqmifcJhMuonfh *kPfxl;aqmif 

tBuHay;yk*¾Kdvfrsm;? 'g½kdufwmrsm;ESifh 0efxrf;rsm;udk uRefawmh 

taejzifh aus;Zl;wif½SdygaMumif; ajymMum;vkdygonf/

av;pm;pGmjzifh

odrf;a0 (c) Serge Pun

Ouú| ESifh Managing Agent

]] . . . 'g½kdufwmtzGJUESifh tBuHay;yk*¾KdvfwdkY\ 

rSefuefoifhavsmfaom vrf;ñTefrI? refae*smrsm;\ 

vkyfief;uRrf;usifrIESifh av;pm;tyfaom 

tpk½S,f,m½SifwkdY\ tm;ay;yHhydk;rIwkdYaMumifh 

ukrÜÜPDtaejzifh atmifjrifNyD; tjrwftpGef;&½Sdonfh 

ESpfwpfESpfudk ausmfjzwfEkdifcJhaMumif; 

*kPf,l0rf;ajrmufpGm tpDt&ifcHtyfygonf . . .}} 

,ckESpfOD;ydkif;u uG,fvGeftedpöa&mufoGm;cJhonfh AkdvfrSL;BuD; 

0if;armif(tNidrf;pm;) udk uRefawmhtaejzifh txl;*kPfjyKtyf 

ygonf/ AkdvfrSL;BuD;0if;armif onf uRefawmfwkdY\ ukrÜPD 

zGJUpnf;xlaxmif&mwGif t"dupGrf;aqmifcJholjzpffNyD;? ukrÜPD 

pwif oaE¨wnfonfhaeYrSpí ,if; uGefvGefoGm;onfh tcsdef 

txd udk,fusdK;rzufbJ rdrdpdwfqE´tavsmuf wm0efrsm;udk 

xrf;aqmifcJhol jzpfygonf/ ,if;taejzifh ukrÜPDtwGuf 

yHhydk;aqmif½Guf ay;cJhrIwkdYudk wkdif;wmír&Ekdifyg/ vGefcJhonfh 

(17)ESpfwm umvtwGif; ESpfpOfESpfywfvnf taxGaxG 

tpnf;ta0;rsm;wGif obmywdtjzpf aqmif½GufcJhonfudk 

tpk½S,f,m½Sifrsm;taejzifh aumif;pGmrSwfrdMuygvdrfhrnf/ ,if; 

tm; uRefawmfwkdY tm;vkH; vGrf;qGwfowd&aeMurnf jzpfygonf/ 

OD;armifarmifpdk;wifh taejzifh AkdvfrSL;BuD;0if;armif\ ae&mwGif 

tBuHay;tzGJU Ouú|tjzpf aqmif½Guf&ef oabmwlvufcHcJhNyD; 

jzpfygaMumif;udkvnf; ajymMum;vkdygonf/

uRefawmfwkdYtaejzifh vkyfief;udk taumif;qkH;aqmif½GufoGm;&ef 

tmrcHygaMumif;ESifh tpk½S,f,m½Sifrsm;tay:½Sdonfh wm0efESifh 

0wå&m;udk vkHYv0D&d,jzifh ausyGefpGmqufvuf xrf;aqmif 

oGm;Murnf jzpfygaMumif; ajymMum;tyfygonf/ 
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FINANCIAL SERVICES

AUTOMOBILE

REAL ESTATE

AGRICULTURE

MANUFACTURING & INDUSTRIES

SERVICES

REVIEW OF 
OPERATIONS
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The success of FMI Company to a large extent 
can be attributed to the careful diversification of investments 

in strategic industries or sectors.

70%

FMI Syndication Ltd.

47.5%

FMI Garden 
Development Ltd.

FINANCIAL SERVICES AUTOMOBILE REAL ESTATE

35.6%

Yoma Bank Ltd.

100%

FMI Trading Centre

90%

Yoma Yarzar 
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

42%

Pun Hlaing 
Landscaping Ltd.

100%

SPA Motorcycle Ltd.

100%

SPA Motors

20%

Seven Golden
Gates Co., Ltd.

30%

Successful Goal 
Trading Co., Ltd.

30%

Thanlyin Estate
Development Ltd.
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AGRICULTURE SERVICESMFG. & INDUSTRIES

FMI ukrÜPDatmifjrifrI\ t"dutcsufrSm 

r[mAsL[musaom vkyfief;u@rsm;wGif &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrIrsm;tm;

*½kwpkduf cGJjcrf;pdwfjzmí &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHjcif;aMumifh jzpfygonf/

30%

Myanmar Agri-Tech Ltd.

30%

Myanmar Agri-Tech
Carbon Capital Ltd.

55%

Agribusiness & Rural
Development

Consultants Co., Ltd.

86%

Wood Technology
Industries Ltd.

20%

SPA Elevators

35%

Pun Hlaing International
Hospital Ltd.

35%

Shine Laundry Ltd.
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There have been no changes within the year, 
with regard to our investment portfolio in the 
Financial Sector. Your Company owns 35.6% 

investment in Yoma Bank Ltd., and 100% investment 
in Yoma Thitsar Commercial Co., Ltd. (FMI Trading 
Centre).

Yoma Bank still retains a leading position in the 
country in terms of branch network and the continued 
success in domestic remittances and money transfers 
is sustained by the highly motivated and professional 
work force in the bank. As in the previous years, the 
earnings of this service has enabled Yoma Bank to 
sustain as a profitable entity. We are hopeful that full 
banking services will resume in the near future. 
 
FMI Trading Centre (FTC) has entered into its fifth year 
of operation this year and we see a steady growth 
in transactions of FMI share trading. Although the 
revenue gained from share sales commissions are not 
significant, the system is functioning well as it gains 
maturity with more and more shareholders utilizing 
its services. Soon, the trading of Preferential Shares 
will be an added financial instrument offered at FTC 
which should further increase income for the Centre.

,ck b@ma&;ESpfwGif þvkyfief;u@ü &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrI 

ajymif;vJjcif;rsm; r½Sdyg/ FMI ukrÜPDonf ½dk;rbPf 

vDrdwufwGif 35.6% ESifh ½dk;ropöm ul;oef;a&mif;0,fa&; 

ukrÜPDvDrdwuf (FMI Trading Centre) wGif 100% &if;ESD; 

jr§KyfESHxm;ygonf/

½dk;rbPfonf EdkifiHtwGif; bPfcGJ uGef&uftus,fjyefYqHk; 

aombPftjzpf qufvufwnf½Sdvsuf½SdNyD;? jynfwGif; aiGvTJ 

aiGydkYjcif;vkyfief; ,ckuJhodkY qufvufatmifjrifaejcif;rSm 

BudK;pm;vIHYaqmftm; aumif;Muaom bPf0efxrf;rsm;aMumifh 

jzpfygonf/ þvkyfief;0efaqmifrIrS &½Sdaom0ifaiGonf ½dk;r 

bPftm; ,cifESpfrsm;uJhodkYyif tjrwfaiGpGef;aom vkyfief;cGJ 

wpfcktjzpf qufvuf&yfwnfapEdkifcJhygonf/ ra0;awmhaom 

tem*wfwGif bPf0efaqmifrIrsm; tjynfht0 jyefvnfjyKvkyf 

Edkifvdrfhrnf[k arQmfvifhxm;ygonf/

We hope the investments in the financial services 
sector will generate more returns for your company in 
the years ahead, taking into consideration the positive 
changes taking place in the country.
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FMI Trading Centre (FTC) \ vkyfief;oufwrf; (5)ESpf 

ajrmufcJhNyDjzpfNyD;? ,if;ukrÜPD\ ½S,f,ma&mif;0,fa&; vkyfief; 

rSm wjznf;jznf; wdk;wufvsuf½SdaMumif; awGU½Sd&ygonf/ ½S,f 

,ma&mif;0,fa&;rS&½Sdaom aumfr½SiftjrwfaiGonf rrsm;jym; 

aomfvnf; ½S,f,mXmerSay;aom 0efaqmifrIrsm;udk toHk;jyK 

onfh ½S,f,m½Sifrsm; wjznf;jznf; wdk;yGm;vmvsuf½SdNyD; t 

a&mif;t0,fpepfrSm &ifhusufvmum aumif;rGefpGm vnfywf 

vsuf½Sdygonf/ rMumrDtcsdefwGif FTC ü OD;pm;ay; tpk 

½S,f,mrsm;vnf; ta&mif;t0,f vkyfEdkifawmhrnfjzpf&m? 

xdkvkyfief;rSvnf; 0ifaiGwdk;wuf&½SdEdkifrnf jzpfygonf/ EdkifiH 

twGif; tjyKoabmaqmifaom ajymif;vJrIrsm;pGm jzpfay: 

aeonfjzpf&m b@ma&;qdkif&m0efaqmifrIu@wGif &if;ESD; 

jr§KyfESHrIrsm;rS ukrÜPDtwGuf tusKd;tjrwf rsm;pGm&½Sdaprnf[k 

arQmfvifhxm;ygonf/
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This is the fifth consecutive year that the 
Automobile Division of the Group has been 
performing well.

The Division comprising of SPA Motorcycle Ltd. (100% 
subsidiary), SPA Motors (100% subsidiary), Yoma 
Yarzar Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (90% subsidiary) and 
The Seven Golden Gates Co., Ltd. (20% associate) in 
aggregate contributed Ks. 350 million in dividends to 
the Company.
 
Since 2009, SPA Motorcycle Ltd., has been distributing 
Stream brand motorcycles, produced by Yoma Yarzar 
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. in the domestic market, and 
has also been supplying parts and accessories, as well 
as providing repair and maintenance services. This 
is in addition to its existing business of distributing 
Suzuki brand motorcycles.
 
SPA Motors continues to provide repair and 
maintenance services, not only to Nissan and Suzuki 
brand vehicles, but also to other brands of vehicles 
in the market. The company, due to its technical 
efficiency, employment of systematic work procedures 
and high-class service provided by its technicians has 
gained the trust and confidence of its customers. 
During the year SPA Motors augmented its market 
reach by opening another service center in Mandalay.
 
Yoma Yarzar Manufacturing Co., Ltd., the most 
successful company so far within the Automobile 
Division, has entered its third year of operation and 
its performance for this year is commendable.

Since the end of June of this year, due to the change in 
the government's policy regarding issuing of licenses 
to motorcycles, the market for domestically produced 
motorcycle experienced renewed impetus. Yoma 
Yarzar Manufacturing Co., Ltd. was granted licenses to 
produce 6,000 units of Stream YMD 110 motorcycles 
and another 6,000 units of Stream YRS 125 model 
motorcycles for this year and productions are already 
on the way.
 
To cope with the increased production, the production 
plant has been expanded with new machinery and 
technology brought in. We are pleased with the 
support from Dayang Motorcycle Company of China 
in all aspects of technology transfer and cooperation. 
Considering the favourable prevailing conditions 
of the market, we are optimistic that this entity’s 
performance in fiscal year 2010-2011 will also be 
highly satisfactory.
 
Seven Golden Gates Co., Ltd., which imports and 
distributes Nissan brand motor vehicles and spare 
parts, started importing 30-seater buses this year 
for its own and its clients’ account. The liberalization 
of policy in this category of vehicles will allow this 
entity to generate new businesses in the coming 
year. During the year, this entity was the only entity 
within the Automobile Division that was unable to pay 
any dividends and we hope that this situation would 
change in the coming year.



15 Annual Report 2009-2010

Sales and Distribution of Dongfeng brand 
Automobiles by Successful Goal 
Trading Co., Ltd.
 
Your Board is of the view that, with the significant 
changes taking place in Myanmar, as well as the 
importance that the government attaches to the 
development of infrastructure and transport sector in 
the country, the role of road transport has a bright 
future, and the market will require more demand for 
commercial vehicles in the years ahead.
 
The Board therefore, has resolved to increase our 
investment in the automobile business, a business in 
which the Company has over ten years of experience. 
Plans are underway to start several new businesses 
in this field and one that is underway is the sale 
and distribution of Chinese made Dongfeng brand 
light trucks in Myanmar. This new business will be 
in collaboration with our sister company SPA Group 
and will be undertaken by a wholly owned subsidiary 
called the Successful Goal Trading Co., Ltd. FMI shall 
have 30% interest in the venture. Construction of a 
new sales and post-sales service centre for Dongfeng 
vehicles will soon begin at Hlaing Tharyar.
 
Starting with distribution in the initial stage, the 
venture will develop into assembly and manufacturing 
of the light trucks locally in the near future. Dongfeng 
Automobile Co., Ltd. (DFAC), based in Wuhan, China, 
is a Shanghai Stock Exchange Listed company, whose 
business activities include the design, manufacture 
and sales of Dongfeng series and Dongfeng Nissan 
series light commercial vehicles. DFAC owns the only 
domestic Research and Development Center that 
specializes in research and development, design and 
testing of light commercial vehicles.

,ckESpfonf  FMI ukrÜPDtkyfpk\ armfawmf,mOfvkyfief; 

Xmetaejzifh vkyfief;rsm; (5)ESpfqufwkduf atmif 

jrifpGm aqmif½GufEkdifcJhonfhESpf jzpfygonf/

armfawmf,mOfvkyfief;XmewGif SPA Motorcycle Ltd. (&if;ESD; 

jr§KyfESHrI 100%)? SPA Motors (&if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrI 100%)? Yoma 

Yarzar Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (&if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrI 90%)? 

Seven Golden  Gates Co., Ltd.  (&if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrI 20%)

wkdYyg0ifMuNyD; pkpkaygif;tjrwfaiGusyf 350 oef; udk ukrÜPDodkY 

ay;EkdifcJhygonf/

2009 ckESpfrS pí SPA Motorcycle Ltd. onf  Yoma 

Yarzar Manufacturing Co., Ltd.  rS xkwfvkyfaom Stream 

trSwfwHqdyf armfawmfqkdifu,frsm;udk jynfwGif;aps;uGufwGif 

jzefYjzL;a&mif;csay;vsuf½SdNyD; jyKjyifxdef;odrf;rIqkdif&m 0efaqmif 

rIrsm;udkvnf; aqmif½Gufay;vsuf½Sdygonf/ þaqmif½GufrI 

wdkYonf vuf½dS Suzuki armfawmfqdkifu,frsm;udk jzefYjzL;a&mif;cs 

ay;rItjyif xyfwdk;aqmif½Gufjcif;rsm; jzpfygonf/

SPA Motors onf Nissan ESifh Suzuki trSwfwHqdyf 

armfawmf,mOf rsm;udkomru tjcm;aom armfawmf,mOf trsdK; 

tpm;rsm;udkyg jyKjyifxdef;odrf;a&; vkyfief;rsm; aqmif½Guf 

ay;vsuf½Sdygonf/ þukrÜPD\ enf;ynmydkif;qkdif&m uRrf; 

usifrI? pepfusonfh vkyfxkH;vkyfenf;rsm;udk okH;pGJrIESifh uRrf;usif 

vkyfom;rsm;\ xdyfwef;0efaqmifrIwkdYaMumifh azmufonfrsm;\ 

,kHMunftm;xm;rIudk &½SdcJhygonf/ ,ckESpftwGif; SPA Motors 

onf rEÅav;NrdKUwGif jyKjyifxdef;odrf;a&;tvkyf½kHwpfck zGifhvSpf 

NyD; aps;uGufudk csJUxGifvkdufygonf/

armfawmf,mOfvkyfief;XmewGif tatmifjrifqkH;aom ukrÜPD 

jzpfonfh Yoma Yarzar Manufacturing Co., Ltd. onf 

,cktcg vkyfief;aqmif½GufcJhonfrSm (3)ESpf½SdNyDjzpfNyD; ,ckESpf 

wGifvnf; pGrf;aqmifrI txl;aumif;rGefaomaMumifh csD;usL; 

*kPf,lygonf/

,ckESpf ZGefvukefrSpí EkdifiHawmftpdk;&\ armfawmfqkdifu,f 

vkdifpifcsay;rI rl0g'ajymif;vJoGm;cJh&m? jynfwGif;jzpf armfawmf 

qkdifu,faps;uGuf jyefvnfjrifhwufcJhygonf/ Yoma Yarzar 

Manufacturing Co., Ltd. taejzifh ,ckESpftwGif; Stream 

YMD 110 armfawmfqkdifu,f tpD;(6000) ESifh Stream YRS 

125 armfawmfqkdifu,f tpD;(6000) xkwfvkyfcGifhvkdifpif&½SdcJhNyD; 

,cktcg xkwfvkyfrIrsm; pwifaejyDjzpfygonf/

xkwfvkyfrIwkd;wufvmjcif;udk udkifwG,fEkdif&eftwGuf jynfyrS 
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Stream Motorcycle Assembly Line at Pakokku Factory

pufu&d,mESifh enf;ynmtopfrsm;udk&,lcJhNyD; puf½kHudkvnf; 

wkd;csJUcJhygonf/ w½kwfjynfrS Dayan Motorcycle ukrÜPD 

taejzifh yl;aygif;aqmif½Gufay;jcif;ESifh enf;ynmvTJajymif;ay; 

jcif;ponfh ulnDyHhydk;rIwkdYtwGuf auseyf0rf;ajrmufygonf/ 

aumif;rGefaom vuf½Sdaps;uGuftajctaewkdYudk axmuf½Ijcif; 

tm;jzifh 2010-2011 b@ma&;ESpftwGuf þukrÜPD\ 

pGrf;aqmifrIonfvnf; txl;auseyfzG,f&m½Sdvdrfhrnf[k ,kHMunf 

ygonf/

Nissan wHqdyfarmfawmf,mOfrsm;ESihf ,mOftydkypönf;rsm; wifoGif; 

a&mif;csvsuf½Sdonfh Seven Golden  Gates Co., Ltd. onf 

,ckESpfwGif xkdifckH(30)yg bwfpfum;rsm;udk ukrÜPDtokH;jyK&efESifh 

azmufonfrsm;twGuf pwifwifoGif;vsuf½Sdygonf/ þukrÜPD 

onf armfawmf,mOfvkyfief;Xme vufatmuf½Sd ukrÜPDrsm; 

teuf ,ckESpftwGuf tjrwfa0pk xkwfay;Ekdifjcif;r½Sdonfh 

ukrÜPDjzpfygonf/ a½SUvmrnfhESpfwGif tajctae ajymif;vJvm 

vdrfhrnf[k arQmfvifhygonf/

 

jrefrmEkdifiHtwGif; odomxif½Sm;aom ajymif;vJrIrsm;jzpfay: 

vsuf½SdNyD;? EkdifiHtwGif; vrf;wHwm;ESifh o,f,lykdYaqmifa&;u@

wkdY zGHUNzdK;wkd;wufrI\ ta&;ygrItay: EkdifiHawmftpkd;&rS tav; 

xm;jcif;wkdYaMumifh ukef;vrf;ydkYaqmifa&; tcef;u@\ tem*wf 

tvm;tvmonf aumif;rGefNyD;? aemifvmrnfh ESpfrsm;twGif; 

ukefwifarmfawmf,mOfrsm; 0,fvkdtm;onf ydkrdkjrifhrm;vmEkdif 

onf[k FMI ukrÜPD 'g½kdufwmtzGJUrS ½Ijrifygonf/

 

odkYjzpfí armfawmf,mOfvkyfief;u@wGif (10)ESpfausmf tawGU 

BuKH½SdcJhNyD;jzpf&m þpD;yGm;a&;vkyfief;wGif ydkrkd &if;ESD;jr§yfESHoGm;&ef 

trIaqmif'g½kdufwmtzGJUrS qkH;jzwfcJhygonf/ þu@wGif 

vkyfief;topfrsm; pwifvkyfudkif&ef tpDtpOfrsm; csrSwfxm;NyD; 

jzpf&m? pwifaeNyDjzpfonfh tpDtpOfwpf&yfrSm jrefrmEkdifiH 

twGif; w½kwfEkdifiHxkwf Dongfeng wHqdyf ukefwif,mOfrsm; 

jzefYjzL;a&mif;cs jcif;yif jzpfygonf/ þpD;yGm;a&; vkyfief;opfonf 

SPA tkyfpkESifh yl;aygif;aqmif½Gufonfh vkyfief;jzpfNyD;? vuf 

atmufcH ukrÜPDjzpfonfh Successful Goal Trading Co., Ltd. 

rS wm0ef,laqmif½GufoGm;rnf jzpfygonf/ FMI ukrÜPDonf 

þvkyfief;\ 30% udk ydkifqdkifygonf/ rMumrDumvtwGif;  

Dongfeng armfawmf,mOfta&mif;jycef;ESifh a&mif;csNyD;aemuf 

0efaqmifrIay;&eftvkyf½kHudk vdIifom,mNrdKUe,fwGif wnfaqmuf 

awmhrnf jzpfygonf/

tpwGif armfawmf,mOfrsm;udk jzefYjzL;a&mif;csjcif;om jyKrnf 

jzpfNyD; aemifwGif tayghpm;ukefwif,mOfrsm;udk jynfwGif;ü 

wyfqifxkwfvkyfonfhtqifhodkY wdk;wufaqmif½GufoGm;rnf 

jzpfygonf/ Dongfeng Automobile Co., Ltd. (DFAC) 

onf w½kwfjynfolYor®wEkdifiH? 0l[efa'oü tajcpkdufNyD;? 

½Sef[kdif; pawmhaps;uGuf pm&if;0ifukrÜPDwpfck taejzifh 

Dongfeng trSwfwHqdyfESifh Dongfeng epfqef; trSwf 

wHqdyf tayghpm;ukefwif,mOfrsm;tm; 'DZkdif;a&;qGJjcif;? xkwf 

vkyfjcif;ESifh jzefYjzL;a&mif;csjcif; tp½Sdonfh vkyfief;rsm;udk 

vkyfudkifvsuf½Sdygonf/ DFAC onf tayghpm; ukefwifarmfawmf 

,mOfrsm; xkwfvkyf&ef okawoejyKvkyfjcif;? 'DZkdif;a&;qGJjcif;ESifh 

prf;oyfarmif;ESifjcif;wkdY jyKvkyfEkdifonfh jynfwGif;ü wckwnf; 

aom okawoeESifh zGHUNzdK;rIwkd;wufa&;pifwmudk ydkifqkdifygonf/
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Your Company's investments in the Real Estate 
Sector comprise of 47.5% interest in FMI 
Garden Development Ltd. (FMI City), and 70% 

interest in FMI Syndication Ltd. (FMI Centre).

In last year's report, it was reported that the 
management sees no factors that would adversely 
affect the results of the sector this year. As expected, 
the entities continued to perform well this year and 
managed to pay dividends.
 
FMI Garden Development Ltd. sold 13 Orchid Garden 
plots, 4 Lake View Villa plots, and 2 Kan Thar Yar 
plots, bringing to a total sale of (19) plots during the 
year. Combined with the additional sales of land, the 
total income generated was Ks. 800 million for this 
year, out of which the FMI City paid a dividend of Ks. 
214 million to your company.
 
For FMI Syndication Ltd., 2009-2010 was another 
year of good performance. It maintained the record of 
nearly 100 percent occupancy for both the commercial 
and office areas. The entity reported a profit of Ks. 
601 million for the period (last year: Ks. 561 million) 
and the dividend paid to your company this year is Ks. 
385 million, the same as the previous year. Outlook 
for the coming year is positive as many of the leases 
will expire and we anticipate rental increments in 
varying degrees.

Thanlyin Star City Housing Project

Your Company has embarked on a new real estate 
development project in the township of Thanlyin 
aptly named as Thanlyin Star City. Situated on the 
south-eastern fringe of Yangon, the site is located at 
the foot of the Yangon Thanlyin Bridge having a total 
of 420 acres along the peninsular area between the 
Yangon and Bago rivers. It is approximately 10km 
from Yangon city centre and enjoys a magnificent 
panoramic view of the city and the Shwedagon Pagoda 
beyond. Approximately 200 acres of the total site area 
will be used for residential development, out of which 
the building footprint covers only about 35%, leaving 
ample space for landscaping, parks, recreational and 
communal facilities. The development will ultimately 
have more than 6,000 residential units supplemented 
by commercial and recreational facilities and 
amenities. Thanlyin Star City is being developed with 

the aim of offering affordable housing in an eco-
friendly environment to a wide populace in Myanmar.

The buildings will consist of 8-storey apartment 
blocks with 3 wings forming a three-arm star shape. 
Each block will be fitted with 2 elevators and will 
have 150 residential units while the ground floor will 
accommodate space for shops, covered car parks and 
community use. Open car parks will also be available 
for the residents.

The first phase of the project will consist of 6 
blocks totaling some 900 units. Construction work 
commenced in October 2010 and the first block 
is scheduled for completion in early 2012. The 
construction of supporting facilities, such as, shopping 
centres, community halls, schools, recreation centres, 
and ferry services will follow shortly.
 
Your Company has made special arrangements for 
shareholders to participate in the project and to gain 
special benefits and privileges. We urge you to take 
advantage of these special arrangements, and we 
are confident that with your support, the Thanlyin 
Star City project will become a model residential 
community in the not too distant future. Its success 
will further strengthen our leadership position in the 
real estate sector.

Orchid Garden Project - FMI City
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þvkyfief;u@wGif FMI ukrÜPDonf FMI Garden 

Development Ltd. (FMI City) \ 47.5% ESifh FMI 

Syndication (FMI Centre) \ 70% udk toD;oD; ydkifqdkif 

xm;ygonf/

pDrHcefYcGJrItzGJUtaejzifh ,ckESpfwGif þvkyfief;u@\ &v'f 

rsm;udk epfemxdcdkufaprnfh taMumif;t&mrsm; awGU½Sd&jcif; 

r½SdaMumif; ,cifESpf tpD&ifcHpmwGif wifjycJhygonf/ arQmfvifh 

xm;onfhtwkdif;yif vufatmufcH ukrÜPDrsm;onf atmifjrifpGm 

qufvuf aqmif½GufEkdifcJhNyD; tjrwfaiGrsm; cGJa0ay;EdkifcJhygonf/

,ckESpftwGif; FMI Garden Development Ltd. taejzifh 

Orchid Garden rS ajruGuf(13)uGuf? Lake View Villa  

rS ajruGuf(4)uGuf? Kan Thar Yar rS ajruGuf(2)uGuf? 

ajruGuf pkpkaygif;(19)uGuf a&mif;csEdkifcJhygonf/ tydkxyfrH 

a&mif;csEkdifcJhaom ajruGufrsm;ESifh aygif;pyfvdkufaomtcg þ 

ESpfwGif 0ifaiG pkpkaygif; usyf 800 oef; &½SdcJhNyD;? oifwkdY\

ukrÜPDtwGuf tjrwfaiG usyf 214 oef; udk cGJa0ay;EdkifcJhyg 

onf/

FMI Syndication Ltd. twGuf 2009-2010 b@mESpfonf 

vkyfief;atmifjrifaom aemufxyf ESpfwpfESpf jzpfygonf/ 

FMI Centre twGif; qdkifcef;ae&mrsm;ESifh ½Hk;cef;ae&mrsm;udk 

&mEIef;jynfheD;yg; iSm;&rf;xm;Edkifonfh pHcsdefudk qufvuf 

xdef;odrf;EdkifcJhygonf/ ,ckESpftwGif; tjrwfaiG usyf 601 

oef; (,cifESpfu usyf 561 oef;) &½SdcJhNyD;? ,cifESpf tcsKd; 

wlyif oifwdkY\ ukrÜPDodkY tjrwfa0pkaiG usyf 385 oef; 

cGJa0ay;EdkifcJhygonf/ vmrnfhESpfwGif iSm;&rf;xm;aom tcef; 

tawmfrsm;rsm;rSm oufwrf;ukefqHk;awmhrnfjzpfNyD;? tcef;iSm; 

&rf;crsm; twkdif;twmtoD;oD; wdk;jrifhvmEdkifzG,f&m½Sdojzifh 

aemufESpftzdkY tvm;tvm aumif;rGefygonf/

FMI ukrÜPDtaejzifh oefvsifNrdKUe,fwGif oefvsifMu,fpif 

tdrf&mpDrHudef; topfwpfckudk pwifaeNyDjzpfygonf/ &efukefNrdKU 

\ ta½SUawmifbufpGef;½Sd &efukefjrpfESifh yJcl;jrpfwdkYtMum; 

uRef;qG,f {&d,mwGif {u(420) tus,ft0ef;½Sdaom þ 

pDrHudef;onf &efukef-oefvsif wHwm;tqif;wGif wnf½Sd 

ygonf/ &efukefNrdKUv,frS (10)uDvdkrDwm tuGmta0;wGif 

wnf½Sdonfjzpf&m? &efukefNrdKUESifh a½Twd*HkapwDawmfwdkY\ vSy 

aom ½IarQmfcif;rsm;tm; vSrf;jrifEdkifygonf/ pDrHudef;wpfck 

vHk; tus,ft0ef;\ {u(200)cefYudk tdrf&mrsm;wnfaqmuf 

rnfjzpfNyD;? xdk {&d,mtwGif; wnfaqmufrnfh tdrf&myHkpHrSm 

35% cefYom ½SdrnfjzpfaomaMumifh yef;yiftvSqifrIrsm;? 

yef;NcHrsm;? tyef;ajz&efESifh trsm;ydkiftaqmuftODrsm; aqmuf 

vkyf&eftwGuf ae&mvHkavmufpGm usefrnfjzpfygonf/ 

tdrf&mpDrHudef; NyD;pD;onfhtcgwGif vlaewdkufcef; (6000)ausmf 

yg½SdrnfjzpfNyD;? pD;yGm;a&;vkyfief; vkyfaqmif&efESifh tyef;ajz 

p&mae&mrsm;? tjcm; toHk;taqmifrsm;vnf; xnfhoGif; 

wnfaqmufoGm;rnf jzpfygonf/ oefvsifMu,fpif tdrf&m 
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Thanlyin Star City Corner Stone Laying Ceremony

pDrHudef; taumiftxnfazmf&onfh &nf½G,fcsufrSm jrefrmEdkifiH 

twGif;½Sd vltrsm;tjym;taejzifh pdrf;vef;pdkajyaom a*[ 

ywf0ef;usifwGif 0,f,l&ef wwfEdkifaom aps;EIef;½Sdtdrf&mrsm; 

wnfaqmufay;vdkí jzpfygonf/

 

taqmuftODrsm;onf (3)yGifhf Mu,fyHko@mefaqmifonfh 

taqmif (3)ckpD½dSaom (8)xyf taqmuftODrsm; jzpfrnfjzpf 

ygonf/ taqmuftOD wpfckpDwGif "mwfavSum;(2)ckpD 

yg½SdrnfjzpfNyD;? vlaetdrfcef; (150)cef;ESifh ajrnDxyfwGif qdkif 

cef;rsm;? trdk;yg um;&yfem;&efae&mrsm;ESifh trsm;toHk;jyKEdkif 

&ef ae&mrsm;yg0ifrnf jzpfygonf/ taqmuftODwGif aexdkif 

olrsm;twGuf jyifyum;&yfem;&ef ae&mrsm;vnf; ½Sdrnfjzpfyg 

onf/

pDrHudef; yxrtqifhwGif tcef;pkpkaygif; (900)yg½Sdaom 

taqmuftOD (6)ckudk pwif wnfaqmufoGm;rnf jzpfygonf/ 

2010 jynfhESpf? atmufwdkbmv wGif aqmufvkyfa&;vkyfief;rsm; 

pwifcJhNyD;? yxrqkH; taqmuftODudk 2012 ESpfOD;ydkif;wGif 

tNyD;owfwnfaqmuf&ef pDpOfxm;ygonf/ a½Smhyif;pifwmrsm;? 

trsm;oHk; cef;rrsm;? ausmif;rsm;? tyef;ajz&efae&mrsm;? 

z,f&D0efaqmifrIrsm;ponfh 0efaqmifrIrsm;udkvnf; tjrefqHk; 

qufvuf wnfaqmufoGm;&ef pDpOfxm;½Sdygonf/

 

ukrÜPDrS ½S,f,m½Sifrsm;taejzifh þpDrHudef;wGif yg0ifvm 

Edkif&efESifh txl;tcGifhta&;ESifh cHpm;cGifhrsm; &½SdEdkif&eftwGuf 

txl;tpDtpOfrsm; csrSwfaqmif½Gufxm;ygonf/ þtpDtpOf 

rsm;udk vufrvTwfoifhyJ tcGifhaumif;,lMu&ef wdkufwGef;vdkNyD;? 

½S,f,m½Sifrsm;\ tm;ay;axmufyHhrIaMumifh ra0;awmhaom  

tem*wfwGif oefvsifMu,fpiftdrf&mpDrHudef;onf pHjyvlae 

tdrf&mwpfck jzpfvmrnf[k ,HkMunfygonf/ þpDrHudef;\ 

atmifjrifrIonf ukrÜPDtaejzifh tdrf&mazmfxkwfwnfaqmufa&; 

tcef;u@wGif OD;aqmifOD;½GufjyKaejcif;udk ydkícdkifrmvmaprnf 

jzpfygonf/
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In addition to our 30% interest in Myanmar Agri-
Tech Ltd. (MAGT), your Company acquired a 55% 
interest in Agribusiness and Rural Development 

Consultants Co., Ltd. (ARDC) during the year. ARDC 
is an agricultural consultancy firm established in 
Myanmar by several veterans in the local agriculture 
field and provides services to local and foreign 
companies wishing to establish agribusinesses in 
Myanmar. Your company continues to hold 30% 
interest in Myanmar Agri-Tech Carbon Capital Ltd. 
(MAGT-CC).

MAGT, now in its fourth year of operation, has 
taken steps to consolidate its plantation operations 
and organizational structures, the most significant 
being the appointment of U Tin Htut Oo as the Chief 
Executive Officer during the period. U Tin Htut Oo 
brings with him more than 30 years of experience in 
the agriculture sector and was the Director General of 
Department of Agricultural Planning under Ministry of 
Agriculture and Irrigation before his retirement. He is 
well known both locally and internationally in his field 
of expertise and we are very fortunate to have been 
able to secure his services for the company.
 
During the year, we successfully exported our first 
batch of Jatropha seeds on a commercial basis. 
Although the tonnage sold is still relatively small, 
it signifies an important milestone for MAGT. Plans 
to augment export sales in the coming year have 
been implemented both through harvesting our own 
produce from our Maw Tin Estate as well as through 
collection from other planters around the country. 

At the same time, MAGT has further diversified its 
operations to include planting of certain cash crops 
with the aim to increase income. The company has 
also adopted efficient local methods of farming 
with the use of local farming implements, correct 
pruning methodology and fertilizer application, and 
cost-effective weeding techniques and post-harvest 
processing methods. For instance, the practice of 
mechanical de-husking of JC fruits and use of efficient 
in-house developed harvesting and seed processing 
machinery have lowered production costs.

Under the leadership of the newly appointed CEO, and 
the employment of these new ideas for operations, 
MAGT has shown greater promise to become one of 
the most important business entities within our Group.

Myanmar Agri-Tech Carbon Capital Ltd. (MAGT-CC) 
remains poised to implement Clean Development 
Mechanism Projects in Myanmar, interacting with 
several potential "green project" developers from 
abroad, as soon as the situation becomes favourable. 
In the meantime, the company continues to conduct 
feasibility studies of potential projects belonging to 
different sectors recognized by the United Nations 
Framework Convention on Climate Change.

ARDC has signed Technical Cooperation and 
Collaboration Agreements with several international 
organizations during the past year and has generated 
income revenues from these assignments. There 
are currently a few projects under preparation and 
discussion, which will provide further income to the 
entity, if successful. It is not anticipated that projected 
profits from ARDC will have any material impact on 
the Group’s bottom line; however, we consider this 
entity to be an important element of our overall 
strategy to invest in the agricultural sector. ARDC 
actively participates in international symposiums and 
forums on agribusiness, JC production and bio-energy 
productions. Through these participations, ARDC has 
been able to actively promote the Group’s activities in 
the agri and bio-energy fields and have successfully 
provided the Group, in particular MAGT, with strong 
relationships with many international firms. 
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þvkyfief;u@wGif FMI ukrÜPDtaejzifh Myanmar 

Agri-Tech Ltd. (MAGT) \ 30% udk ykdifqdkif 

xm;onfhtjyif? ,ckESpftwGif; Agribusiness and Rural 

Development Consultants Co., Ltd. (ARDC) \ 55% 

ydkifqdkifrIudkvnf; 0,f,lcJhygonf/ ARDC onf jynfwGif; 

0g&ifh pdkufysKd;a&;ynm½Sifrsm;rS wnfaxmifxm;aom pkdufysKd;a&; 

tBuHay;ukrÜPDwpfckjzpfNyD; jrefrmEdkifiHwGif pdkufysKd;a&;ESifh 

ywfoufonfh pD;yGm;a&;vkyfief;rsm; wnfaxmifvdkaom 

jynfwGif;^jynfy ukrÜPDrsm;tm; 0efaqmifrIay;vsuf½Sdygonf/ 

FMI ukrÜPDonf Myanmar Agri-Tech Carbon Capital Ltd. 

(MAGT-CC) \ 30% udk qufvuf ydkifqkdifxm;½Sdygonf/

Myanmar Agri-Tech Ltd. onf vkyfief;aqmif½GufrIoufwrf; 

(4)ESpf½SdNyD jzpfNyD;? xdktawmtwGif; pdkufcif;vkyfief;rsm;ESifh 

zGJUpnf;yHkwkdYudk ydkrdkpkpnf;ap&ef aqmif½GufcJhrIrsm;teuf txl; 

jcm;qHk;rSm ,ckESpftwGif; OD;wifxG#fOD; tm; ukrÜPD\ trIaqmif 

t&m½SdcsKyftjzpf cefYtyfcJhjcif;yif jzpfygonf/ OD;wifxG#fOD; 

onf tNidrf;pm;r,lrD v,f,mpdkufysKd;a&;ESifh qnfajrmif; 

0efBuD;Xme vufatmuf½Sd pdkufysKd;a&;pDrHudef; OD;pD;XmewGif 

ñTefMum;a&;rSL;csKyftjzpf wm0efxrf;aqmifcJhNyD;? pdkufysKd;a&; 

u@wGif ESpfaygif; (30)ausmf tawGUtBuHK½SdcJhol jzpfygonf/ 

vkyfief;ydkif;qdkif&m tawGUtBuHK<u,f0rIaMumifh jynfwGif;ESifh 

jynfywGif vlodrsm;aomolwpfOD; jzpfNyD;? rdrdwdkYukrÜPDwGif 

Cash Crops
1. Black pepper nursery
2. Coconut Nursery
3. Inter-row Bottle Gourd
4. Ginger in basket
5. Castor plant

1 2
3 4 5

0ifa&muf wm0efxrf;aqmifonfhtwGuf ukrÜPDtwGuf txl; 

uHaumif;ygonf/

,ckESpftwGif; Muufqlaphrsm; yxrqHk;tokwf pD;yGm;jzpfwif 

ydkYa&mif;csEdkifcJhygonf/ a&mif;cscJhaom MuufqlaphwefcsdefrSm 

rajymyavmufao;aomfvnf;? þtcsif;t&monf MAGT 

twGuf ta&;ygaom ordkif;rSwfwdkifwpfck jzpfygonf/ vm 

rnfhESpfwGif jynfywifydkYrIyrmPudk jr§ifhwif&eftpDtpOfudk 

armfwifpdkufcif;rS &dwfodrf;&½SdrIrsm;ESifh jrefrmEdkifiHwpf0Srf;½Sd 

awmifolrsm;xHrS 0,f,l&½SdrIwdkYjzifh wdk;jr§ifhtaumiftxnfazmf 

aqmif½Gufvsuf½Sdygonf/

wpfcsdefwnf;rSmyif MAGT onf 0ifaiGwdk;wufap&ef &nf½G,f 

csufjzifhf 0ifaiGaumif;aom oD;ESHyiftcsKdU 4if;\ pdkufcif; 

vkyfief;rsm;wGif yg0ifvmap&ef uGJjym;aom pdkufcif;rsm;udk 

ysKd;axmifvsuf½Sdygonf/

MAGT onf a'ocH v,f,mpdkufysKd;a&; ypönf;ud&d,m 

rsm;jzifh ydkrdkxda&mufonfh a'ocHpdkufysKd;enf;ynm toHk; 

jyKjcif;? rSefuefaom tyifwdjzwfrIpepf? ajrMoZm oHk;pGJrI? 

p&dwfoufomaom aygif;EIwfenf;ynm? toD;cl;NyD; aemuf 

aqmif½Guf&onfh vkyfief;pOfrsm;ponfwdkYudk toHk;jyKaqmif 

½Gufvsuf ½Sdygonf/ Oyrmtm;jzifh MuufqloD;rsm;udk pufjzifh 

tcGHcRwfjcif;ESifh udk,fwdkif wnfaqmufxm;onfh toD;cl; 

pufESifh taphxkwfpufwdkYudk toHk;jyKjcif;jzifh xkwfvkyfrIp&dwfudk 

avQmhcsEkdifcJhygonf/

topfcefYtyfxm;aom trIaqmift&m½SdcsKyf\ OD;aqmifrI 

atmufwGif vkyfief;twGuf þuJhokdYaom tBuHÓPfopfrsm;udk 

taumiftxnfazmf aqmif½Gufjcif;jzifh MAGT onf FMI 

tkyfpktwGif; ta&;BuD;qHk;aom ukrÜPDwpfck jzpfvmEdkif&ef 

tvm;tvmaumif;rsm;udk jyovsuf½Sdygonf/
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JC Plants after systematic pruning at Maw Tin Estate

Euclyptus (Bio Mass Plant) Wooden Dehulling Machine Rice inter-row weeder

Myanmar Agri-Tech Carbon Capital Ltd. (MAGT-CC) onf jrefrmEdkifiHwGif ]]oefY 

½Sif;aom zGHUNzdK;wdk;wufrIpepf}} pDrHudef;rsm;udk tajctaeay;onfESihf wpfNydKifeuf t 

aumiftxnfazmf aqmif½Guf&ef toifhtaetxm;wGif qufvufwnf½SdNyD;? jynfyrS 

tvm;tvm½Sdaom ]]tpdrf;a&mifpDrHudef;}} taumiftxnfazmfolrsm;ESifh aqG;aEG; 

wdkifyifrIrsm; jyKvkyfvsuf½Sdygonf/ MAGT-CC taejzifh &moDOwk ajymif;vJjcif;qdkif&m 

ukvor*¾rlabmifcsrSwfa&;tzGJUrS owfrSwfxm;aom u@toD;oD;wGifyg0ifonfh 

tvm;tvm½SdEkdifaom pDrHudef;rsm;\ jzpfEkdifajcwdkYudk qufvufavhvmvsuf ½Sdygonf/

Agribusiness and Rural Development Consultants Co., Ltd. onf 

,ckESpftwGif;wGif EdkifiHwumrS tzGJUtpnf;tcsKdUESifh Technical Cooperation and 

Collaboration Agreements (TCCAS) oabmwlpmcsKyfrsm; vufrSwfa&;xdk;xm;½SdNyD;? 

xdkvkyfief;rsm;rS 0ifaiG&½SdaeNyDjzpfonf/ taumiftxnfazmf&ef aqG;aEG;vsuf½Sdonfh 

pDrHudef;tcsKdU½SdaeNyD;? xdkpDrHudef;rsm; atmifjrifNyD;qHk;cJhvQif ukrÜPDtwGuf 0ifaiGxyfrH 

&½Sdaprnfjzpfonf/ ARDC rS &½Sd&ef cefYrSef;xm;aom0ifaiGonf FMI ukrÜPDtkyfpktwGuf 

xda&mufonfh tusKd;oufa&mufrI½Sdvmvdrfhrnf[k rarQmfrSef;xm;aomfvnf; FMI rS 

pdkufysKd;a&;u@wGif &if;ESD;jr§yfESH&ef r[mAsL[mtwGuf ta&;ygaom ukrÜPDwpfcktjzpf 

½Ijrifygonf/

ARDC taejzifh EdkifiHwum v,f,mpD;yGm;a&;? MuufqlpdkufysKd;a&;ESifh ZD0pGrf;tif 

xkwfvkyfa&;qdkif&m   nDvmcHrsm;wGif wuf<upGm yg0ifvIyf½Sm;vsuf½Sdygonf/ tqdkyg 

tpnf;ta0;rsm;wGif ARDC onf FMI ukrÜPD tkyfpk\ pdkufysKd;a&;ESifh ZD0avmifpmu@

wGif vkyf½Sm;rIrsm;udk wuf<upGm aMumfjimay;Edkifvsuf½Sd&m FMI tkyfpk? txl;ojzifh 

MAGT twGuf EdkifiHwumrS ukrÜPDtrsm;tjym;ESifh cdkifrmaom csdwfqufrIrsm;udk 

atmifjrifpGm wnfaqmufay;EdkifcJhygonf/ 
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Wood Technology Industries Ltd. (WTI) 
continues to remain the sole company 
in this sector in which your company 

has invested. Your company owns 86% of Wood 
Technology Industries Ltd., which continues to 
experience decline in the number of contracts and 
challenges in procuring required quality raw materials. 
After due consideration, your Company will be looking 
to dispose of this investment within the present year 
as it cannot satisfy our investment criteria any longer.

pufrIukefxkwfvkyfief; u@wGif Wood 

Technology Industries Ltd. (WTI) onf 

FMI Co., Ltd. \ wpfckwnf;aom &if;ESD;jr§yfESHrIjzpfygonf/ 

FMI ukrÜPDrS 86 % &if;ESD;jr§yfESHxm;aom þvkyfief;onf 

uefx½dkufvkyfief;rsm;&½SdrI avsmhenf;aejcif;ESifh t&nftaoG; 

aumif; ukefMurf;0,f,lEkdifrIwkdYwGif pdefac:rIrsm;ESifh BuHKawGU 

ae&jcif;wdkYudk &ifqdkifae&qJ jzpfygonf/ þvkyfief;onf FMI 

ukrÜPD\ &if;ESD;jr§yfESHrIqdkif&m pHEIef;udk rrDawmhonfhtwGuf? 

þtcsuftvuftay: taotcsm qifjcifoHk;oyfNyD;aemuf 

,ckESpftwGif; þ &if;ESD;jr§yfESHrIudk jyefvnfa&mif;cs&eftwGuf 

pOf;pm;aqmif½GufoGm;rnf jzpfygonf/
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Your Company owns 35% of Pun Hlaing 
International Hospital Ltd. (PHIH), 35% of 
Shine Laundry Ltd. (Shine) and 20% of SPA 

Elevators respectively, the three entities in the service 
sector.

Pun Hlaing International Hospital continued another 
year of steady improvement both financially and 
operationally. The ongoing special programs, such as 
cardiac, orthopaedic, plastic surgery and eye surgery 
are becoming increasingly popular and are attracting 
more patients. Similarly, Pun Hlaing Clinic at FMI 
Center has managed to provide new services in dental 
& oral care and weight reduction programs during 
the year. Together with the existing skin care center, 
these new health centers are also drawing increasing 
number of patients. Despite its achievement to 
become cash positive and self sustaining, Pun Hlaing 
International Hospital has not reached a stage of 
profitability and is therefore not able to declare any 
dividends.

Shine Laundry Ltd. opened an outlet at Nay Pyi Taw 
during the year. Although clientele and revenue have 
increased allowing this entity to make a profit for 
the year, the entity has decided that its distributable 
profits are not significant enough to allow it to declare 
a dividend for the year.

SPA Elevators successfully fulfilled (5) contracts for 
installation of Mitsubishi brand elevators during the 
year, (3) in Yangon and (2) in Nay Pyi Taw. It was able 
to pay a dividend of Ks. 20 million for the year. This 
entity currently earns a steady revenue service and 
maintenance contracts of over 30 existing elevators 
in the country. The outlook for SPA Elevators for this 
year is positive with secured contracts for installation 
of (4) more elevators. 
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þu@wGif FMI ukrÜPDonf yef;vdIiftjynfjynf 

qdkif&maq;½HkvDrdwuf (PHIH) \ 35%? Shine 

Laundry Ltd. \ 35% ESifh SPA Elevators \ 20% wdkYudk 

toD;oD; ydkifqdkifxm;ygonf/

 

yef;vdIiftjynfjynfqdkif&maq;½Hkonf þESpfwGifvnf; b@m 

a&;ESifh vkyfief;ydkif;wdkYwGif yHkrSefwdk;wufrIrsm; qufvuf½Sd 

aeygonf/ txl;tpDtpOfrsm;jzpfonfh ESvHk;a&m*g? t½dk; 

a&m*g? tpm;xdk;cGJpdwfjyKjyifrIESifh rsufpda&m*g cGJpdwfrIrsm; 

qdkif&m aq;ukorI tpDtpOfrsm;onf wpfaeYwjcm; vlod 

rsm;vmvsuf½SdNyD;? vlemopfrsm;udk ydkrdkqGJaqmifvsuf ½Sdygonf/ 

xdkYtwl FMI pifwm½Sd yef;vdIiftxl;uk aq;cef;wGifvnf; 

,ckESpftwGif; oGm;ESifhcHwGif;usef;rma&; 0efaqmifrIESifhcE¨mudk,f 

tav;csdefavQmhonfh tpDtpOfqdkif&m pifwmtopfrsm;udk 

zGifhvSpfEkdifcJhygonf/ ,cif ta&jym;ukorIpifwmESifhtwl þ 

usef;rma&; pifwmtopfrsm;wGifvnf; vlemopfrsm; wdk;yGm;vsuf 

½Sdygonf/ yef;vdIifaq;½Hkonf udk,fwdkif&yfwnfvmEdkifNyD;? 

t½HI;ay:jcif; r½Sdawmh aomfvnf;? tjrwfa0pk cGJay;Ekdifonfh 

taetxm;okdY a&muf½SdEdkifjcif; r½Sdao;aMumif; azmfjytyfygonf/

Shine Laundry Ltd. onf ,ckESpftwGif; aejynfawmfwGif 

qdkifcGJ (1)ck zGifhvSpfcJhygonf/ Shine wGif azmufonfrsm;ESifh 

0ifaiGrsm;wdk;yGm;vsuf½SdNyD; þESpftwGuf tjrwfaiG&½Sdaomfvnf; 

xdktjrwfaiGrSm rajymyavmufonfhtwGuf þESpftwGuf 

tjrwfa0pkcGJay;Ekdifonfh taetxm;odkY ra&muf½Sdao;aMumif; 

ukrÜPDu qHk;jzwfcJhygonf/

SPA Elevators onf þESpftwGif; &efukefNrdKUwGif rpfqlbD½SD 

wHqdyf "mwfavSum; (3)pif;ESifh aejynfawmfwGif (2)pif;? 

pkpkaygif; "mwfavSum; (5)pif; wyfqif&ef uefx½dkuf 

vkyfief;rsm;udk tNyD;owf aqmif½GufEkdifcJhygonf/ 4if; ukrÜPD 

onf þESpfwGif tjrwfaiGusyf (20)oef;udk tjrwfa0pktjzpf 

cGJa0ay;Edkif cJhygonf/ SPA Elevators onf vuf½SdtcsdefwGif 

jrefrmEdkifiHwpf0ef;wGif ,cifwyfqifxm;aom "mwfavSum; 

(30)pif; ausmfwdkYtm; jyKjyifxdef;odrf;a&; uefx½dkufvkyfief;wdkYrS 

yHkrSef0ifaiG&½Sdvsuf ½Sdygonf/

SPA Elevators taejzifh "mwfavSum;topf (4)ck wyfqif&ef 

uefx½dkufvkyfief;opfrsm; &½SdcJhNyD; jzpfonfhtwGuf ,ckb@m 

a&;ESpftwGufvnf; tvm;tvm aumif;rGefygonf/
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First Myanmar Investment Co., Ltd.

FMI was one of the earliest public companies formed 
following the adoption of market economy and the 
promulgation of the Myanmar Investment laws 
in the early 90s. Established in 1992, it became 
an instant success with local investors hungry for 
professional investment management and sound 
diversity. The Company's Initial Public Offering was 
fully subscribed and subsequent rights issues and 
new issues have also always been successful.

Today, FMI as the Group's local flagship investment 
company has been widely recognized as one of 
the foremost public companies in Myanmar with 
an outstanding track record of steady profits and 
impressive dividends over the past 17 years.

FMI's strength lies not only in its strategic 
diversification of investment, but also in its 
professional management, stringent corporate 
governance and transparency. The Board 
members strictly adhere to corporate rules and 
act independently to ensure proper conduct and 
development of FMI businesses.

Company Information, Registration And 
Commencing Of Business

First Myanmar Investment Co., Ltd. was founded 
with reference to Ministry of Trade, Company 
Register Office, Registration No. 159/92-93 dated 
July 3, 1992 and the Commencing of Business was 
on November 1, 1992.

MANAGING AGENT

Serge Pun & Associates (Myanmar) Ltd.

AUDITOR

U Hla Tun & Associates Limited

CORPORATE ADDRESS 

FIRST MYANMAR INVESTMENT CO., LTD.
FMI Centre, 10th & 11th Floors, No. 380, Bogyoke 
Aung San Road, Pabedan Township, Yangon.
Tel: (951) 240363, 240373, 240383, 240393 Fax: 
(951) 246882, 246883

CORPORATE PROFILE
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"We are an energetic group of professionals totally committed to constantly 
improving the Quality of our business performance through the practice of our 
Seven Focuses. We will continue to pursue and achieve our company's goals 

through a shared vision that will benefit all."

O
ur

 C
us

to
mers         Our Shareholders

O
ur Com

m
unity            Our E

m

pl
oy

ee
s

People will always be a vital 
resource in our organisation. 

Our employees will always be 
treated fairly and with respect. 

We consider Training and Human 
Resource Development as part of 

our Company’s goals and we shall try to 
develop staff to their highest potential to help 

them develop themselves to be more effective, 
productive and professional within the Company.

We care for our 
environment and for the 
community we work in. 
Due consideration will always 
be given to safeguarding our 
environment, saving our natural 
resources and providing benefits and 
assistance to the community in which we 
work in.

The motivation of our work will be focused on 
maximising the returns for our shareholders. 

We value the trust that our shareholders 
have placed with us and we shall 

return their confidence with 
profits, earned with integrity, 

customer satisfaction and 
intelligent business skills.

We will provide customer satisfaction through 
the delivery of our SPA Star Quality Service that 
is consistent, fair and sincere. We shall 
never forget that the “Customer” 
is the reason we exist and that 
only with service that comes 
from the heart can we expect 
more customers tomorrow.

MISSION
STATEMENT
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O
U

R CORE
VALUES

Customer
Focus

Learning
Focus

Teamwork
Focus

Loyalty
Focus

Innovative
Focus

Accountability
Focus

Quality
Focus

Coming together - Working together - Sharing together - Succeeding together
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1. THEIM WAI @ SERGE PUN
 Chairman and Managing Agent

 Theim Wai @ Serge Pun, is the founder and the Chairman of the Serge Pun & Associates (SPA) Group. He has 
over 30 years of international business and investment experiences in Hong Kong, China, Taiwan, Malaysia, 

Thailand, Singapore, Western Europe, North America and Myanmar. He is the Chairman of FMI Company.

 OD;odrf;a0 onf Serge Pun & Associates (SPA) tkyfpktm; wnfaxmifonfh Ouú| jzpfonf/ olonf a[mifaumif? w½kwf? 

xdkif0rf? rav;½Sm;? xdkif;? puFmyl? Oa&my ajrmufydkif;? ajrmuftar&du ESifh jrefrmEdkifiHwdkYwGif ESpfaygif; (30)ausmfMum EdkifiHwum 

pD;yGm;a&;ESifh &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrIjyKonfh vkyfief;tawGUtBuHKrsm; ½SdcJhonf/ olonf FMI ukrÜPD\ Ouú| jzpfonf/

2. MYAT THIN AUNG
 Vice-Chairman

 Myat Thin Aung, is the Chairman of AA group of companies. Currently, he also serves as the President of Ye-
Me-Thin Association, member of Central Executive Committee of Union of Myanmar Federation of Chamber 
of Commerce & Industry and Myanmar Industries Association and President of Hlaing Thayar Industrial City 

Management Committee. He is the Vice-Chairman of FMI Company.

 OD;jrwfoif;atmif onf AA ukrÜPDrsm;tkyfpk\ Ouú| jzpfonf/ olonf &rnf;oif;toif;wGif Ouú| tjzpfvnf;aumif;? 

jynfaxmifpk jrefrmEdkifiH ukefonfrsm;ESifhpufrIvkyfief;½Sifrsm;toif;ESifh jrefrmEdkifiHpufrIzGHUNzdK;a&;toif;\ A[dktvkyftrIaqmif 

aumfrwD0iftjzpf vnf;aumif;? vIdifom,mpufrIZkef pDrHcefYcGJa&;aumfrwD\ Ouú| tjzpf vnf;aumif; aqmif½Gufvsuf½Sdonf/ 

olonf FMI ukrÜPD\ 'k-Ouú| jzpfonf/

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8

9 10
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3. AUNG WIN KHAING
 Vice-Chairman

 Aung Win Khaing, is the Chairman of Hi-Tech family companies in Mandalay and the Managing Director of 
Mandalay Cement Industries Co., Ltd. Currently, he is also the President of Mandalay Chamber of Commerce & 
Industry, Mandalay Golf Association and Mandalay Koh-Kang Buddhist Association, and Director of Yadanarpon 

Bank. He is the Vice-Chairman of FMI Company.

 OD;atmif0if;cdkif onf rEÅav;½Sd Hi-Tech rdom;pk ukrÜPDrsm;\ Ouú| jzpfNyD;? Mandalay Cement Industries Co., Ltd. \ 

tkyfcsKyfrI'g½dkufwmvnf; jzpfonf/ olonf rEÅav;wdkif; ukefonfrsm;ESifh pufrIvkyfief;½Sifrsm;toif;? rEÅav; a*gufoD;½kduf 

toif;? rEÅav; udk;uefYAk'¨bmom toif;wdkY\ Ouú| tjzpfvnf;aumif;? &wemyHkbPf\ 'g½dkufwmtjzpfvnf;aumif; 

aqmif½Gufvsuf½Sdonf/ olonf FMI ukrÜPD\ 'k-Ouú| jzpfonf/

4. KYAW PAING
 Managing Director
 
 Kyaw Paing, is a lawyer and pursued legal career until he joined SPA/FMI Group in 1991. He is currently the 

Managing Director of FMI Company, SPA, and Chairman of Yoma Bank Ltd. 

 OD;ausmfydkif onf a½SUaewpfOD;jzpfonf/ 1991 ckESpfwGif SPA/FMI tkyfpkodkY 0ifa&mufcJhcsdeftxd a½SUaevkyfief;rsm;udk 

aqmif½GufcJhygonf/ vuf½dSwGif olonf FMI ukrÜPD? SPA wdkY\ tkyfcsKyfrI'g½dkufwmESifh ½dk;rbPf Ouú| wm0efrsm;udk 

xrf;aqmifvsuf½Sdonf/

5. THAN AUNG
 Director
 
 Than Aung, is the Managing Director of Yar-Pye Co., Ltd. and other family owned companies. He is the Director 

of FMI Company since 1992.

 OD;oef;atmif onf &mjynfhukrÜPDESifh tjcm;rdom;pkukrÜPDrsm;\ tkyfcsKyfrI'g½dkufwmjzpfonf/ olonf FMI ukrÜPD\ 'g½dkufwm 

tjzpf 1992 ckESpfrS pwifaqmif½GufcJhonf/

6. THAN TUN
 Director 

 Than Tun, retired from the armed forces as lieutenant and received the Meritorious Service Medal for his 
outstanding service. He is the Director of FMI Company since 1992.

 OD;oef;xGef; onf wyfrawmfrS t&mcHAdkvftqifhjzifh tNidrf;pm;,lcJhNyD;? wyfrawmfwGif xl;cRefpGm wm0efxrf;aqmifcJhonfhtwGuf 

EdkifiHawmfucsD;jr§ifhonfh ppfrIxrf;aumif;wHqdyf &½SdcJhygonf/ olonf FMI ukrÜPD\ 'g½dkufwmtjzpf 1992 ckESpfrS pwif 

aqmif½GufcJhonf/

7. PROFESSOR YI YI MYINT
 Director 

 Professor Yi Yi Myint, is a retired professor of Economics with a long tenure at the Institute of Economics, 
Yangon. She is highly respected for her contribution towards the introduction of business education and 
advocating a market oriented economy in Myanmar. She was awarded Good Public Services Medal in 1990 and 
was a delegate in the National Convention. She is the promoter and advisor of Myanmar Women Entrepreneurs 
Association and Vice-President of Management Committee of U Hla Tun (Hospice) Cancer Foundation. She was 
appointed Director of FMI Company in 2009.
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 ygarmu©a':&D&Djrifh onf &efukefpD;yGm;a&;wuúodkvfwGif ESpfaygif;rsm;pGm wm0efxrf;aqmifcJhjyD;aemuf ygarmu©tjzpfrS tjidrf;pm; 

,lcJhygonf/ jrefrmEdkifiHwGif pD;yGm;a&;qdkif&m ynm&yfrsm;udk pwifrdwfqufay;cJhjyD;? aps;uGufpD;yGm;a&;pepf jzpfxGef;wdk;wufa&; 

twGuf tm;xkwfBudK;yrf;cJhrIrsm;aMumifh av;pm;todtrSwfjyKcH&olwpfOD;vnf; jzpfygonf/ jynfolU0efxrf;aumif;wHqdyfudk 

1990 ckeSpfwGif csD;jr§ifhjcif;cHcJh&NyD; trsdK;om;nDvmcH udk,fpm;vS,fwpfOD;vnf; jzpfygonf/ olronf jrefrmtrsdK;orD; pD;yGm;a&; 

pGrf;aqmif½Sifrsm;toif;\ wnfaxmifolESifh tBuHay;yk*¾dKvftjzpf aqmif½Gufvsuf½Sdonfhtjyif? OD;vSxGef;arwåm&dyfrGef(uifqm) 

azmifa';½Sif; pDrHcefYcGJrIaumfrwD\ 'kwd,Ouú|tjzpf wm0ef,laqmif½Gufaeygonf/ olronf FMI ukrÜPD\ 'g½dkufwm 

tzGJU0iftjzpf 2009 ckESpfrS pwifaqmif½GufcJhonf/

8. TIN MAUNG WIN
 Director

 Tin Maung Win, is a qualified electronic engineer and devoted his career to education and teaching. He 
established his first private school, International Language and Business Centre (ILBC) in 1995, followed by 
Yangon International School (YIS). He also carried out the research and development of renewable energy and 
electric vehicles since 1997. He was appointed Director of FMI Company in 2009.

 OD;wifarmif0if; onf xl;cRefxufjrufaom tDvufxa&mepf tif*sifeD,mwpfOD;jzpfNyD; ynma&;ESifh oifMum;a&;qdkif&m vkyfief;&yf 

rsm;ü pdwfa&mudk,fyg jr§KyfESHvkyfudkifcJhygonf/  1995 ckESpfwGif ol\ yxrqHk;yk*¾vduausmif;jzpfonfh International 

Language and Business Centre (ILBC) udk pwifwnfaxmifcJhjyD;aemuf Yangon International School (YIS) udk 

qufvuf wnfaxmifcJhygonf/  jyefvnfjznfhNrJpGrf;tifESifh vQyfppfpGrf;tm;oHk; armfawmf,mOfrsm;qdkif&m okawoeESifh zGHUjzdK;a&; 

vkyfief;rsm;udkvnf; 1997 ckESpfuyif pwifaqmif½GufcJhygonf/ olonf FMI ukrÜPD\ 'g½dkufwmtzGJU0iftjzpf 2009 ckESpfrS 

pwifaqmif½GufcJhonf/

9. NE LIN OO
 Director

 Ne Lin Oo, is an engineer and  joined Myanmar Nissan Co., Ltd. in 1998. Currently, he is the Head of the 
Automobile Division of the group, Alternate Director of SPA and Director of FMI Company.

 OD;aevif;OD; onf tif*sifeD,mwpfOD;jzpfNyD; jrefrmepfqef;ukrÜPDodkY 1998 ckESpfwGif 0ifa&mufcJhonf/ vuf½SdtcsdefwGif olonf 

ukrÜPDtkyfpk\ armfawmf,mOf vkyfief;Xmeudk BuD;Muyfvkyfudkifvsuf½SdNyD; SPA  ukrÜPD\ tvSnfhus 'g½kdufwmwpfOD;tjzpfvnf;aumif; 

FMI ukrÜPD\ 'g½dkufwmtzGJU0iftjzpfvnf;aumif; wm0efxrf;aqmifvsuf½dSonf/

10. TUN TUN
 Director

 Tun Tun, is an Associate of Chartered Secretaries. He joined SPA/FMI Group in December, 1998. Currently, he 
is the Head of Group Corporate Secretariat , Director of Meeyahta International Hotel Ltd., Myanmar Agri-Tech 
Ltd., Pun Hlaing Golf Estate, SPA and FMI Company.

 OD;xGef;xGef; onf NAdwdefEkdifiH Chartered Secretaries toif;\ toif;0ifjzpfonf/ olonf SPA/FMI ukrÜPDtkyfpkokdY 1998 

ckESpf 'DZifbmvwGif 0ifa&mufcJhonf/ vuf½SdtcsdefwGif ukrÜPD\ ½Hk;tzGJUukdOD;pD;NyD; Meeyahta International Hotel Ltd., 

Myanmar Agri-Tech Ltd., Pun Hlaing Golf Estate, SPA ESifh FMI ukrÜPDwkdY\ 'g½kdufwmjzpfonf/
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MAUNG MAUNG SOE TINT, retired from civil services as the Myanmar Ambassador to Australia and New Zealand. 
He was also the Principal of many government schools and the director of Myanmar Language Department. He is a 
fellow of Royal Society of Art, UK. He served as Advisor to the Board of FMI Company since 1998 for 12 years and 
he became the Chair Advisor in October 2010.

OD;armifarmifpdk;wifh onf Mopaw;vsEdkifiHESifh e,l;ZDvef EdkifiHqdkif&m jrefrmoHtrwfBuD; tNidrf;pm;jzpfonf/ olonf tpdk;&ausmif;rsm;\ 

ausmif;tkyfBuD; tjzpfvnf;aumif;? jrefrmpmXme\ ñTefMum;a&;rSL;tjzpfvnf;aumif; aqmif½GufcJhonf/ olonf NAdwdefEdkifiH Royal 

Society of Art \ &moufyef toif;0ifjzpfonf/ olonf FMI ukrÜPD\ tBuHay;tzGJU0iftjzpf 1998 ckESpfrSpwifí (12)ESpfMum 

wm0efaqmifcJhNyD;? 2010 atmufwdkbmv wGif tBuHay;tzGJUOuú| tjzpf cefYtyfjcif;cH&ygonf/

WIN THIN, is a professional accountant and serves as a member of Myanmar Accountancy Council and Board 
member of Myanmar Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is currently the Senior Consultant of the firm he 
set up 51 years ago which is the representative of DFK International in Myanmar. He is the Advisor  to the Board of 
FMI Company since 1992.

OD;0if;oif onf rSwfyHkwifpm&if;udkifwpfOD;jzpfNyD; jrefrmEdkifiHpm&if;aumifpD? jrefrmEdkifiHvufrSwf& jynfolUpm&if;udkifrsm; toif;wdkY\ 

trIaqmiftzGJU0if jzpfonf/ vuf½Sdtcsdef olonf DFK International \ jrefrmEdkifiH udk,fpm;vS,f½Hk;jzpfaom? olxlaxmifcJhonfh 

oufwrf;(51)ESpf½Sdonfh pm&if;udkifpm&if;ppftzGJU\ tBuD;wef;tBuHay;tjzpf aqmif½Gufvsuf½Sdygonf/ olonf FMI ukrÜPD\ tBuHay; 

tzGJU0iftjzpf 1992 ckESpfrS pwifaqmif½GufcJhonf/

HLA KYI, is the Chairman of Golden Family Ltd. and run the business of gold smith, commercial trading and Yoma 
Hotels for his entire career life. He was the Chairman of FMI Company from 1992 to 2004 and was Vice-Chairman of 
Yoma Bank Ltd. Currently, he is the Advisor to the Board of FMI Company.

OD;vSMunf onf a½TurÇmvkyfief;pkukrÜPD\ Ouú| jzpfNyD;? a½Tqdkifvkyfief;? ul;oef;a&mif;0,fa&;ESifh ½dk;r[dkw,f vkyfief;rsm; aqmif½Guf 

cJhonf/ olonf FMI ukrÜPD\ Ouú| tjzpf 1992-2004 ckESpftxd vnf;aumif;? ½dk;rbPf\ 'k-Ouú| tjzpfvnf;aumif; aqmif½Guf 

cJhonf/ olonf FMI ukrÜPD\ tBuHay; tzGJU0ifjzpfonf/

MARTIN PUN, was born in Yangon, Myanmar and educated in Yangon and Beijing, China. He spent twelve years in 
China and Hong Kong, and eighteen years in Hawaii, USA.  He worked at various jobs including hotels, his last post 
in USA was the Managing Partner for New York Life Insurance Co. for their Hawaii Branch. He joined SPA in 1994 as 
Chief Executive Officer. Currently, he is the Vice-Chairman of SPA and Advisor to the Board of FMI Company.

From (L to R)
U Maung Maung Soe Tint, U Win Thin, U Hla Kyi, Mr. Martin Pun, U Win Maung (Deceased)
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1. AUNG THAN, is a career banker and retired as a branch manager from Myanma Economic Bank. He joined 
Yoma Bank in 1993 and currently is the Deputy Managing Director of Yoma Bank.

 OD;atmifoef; onf bPfvkyfief; uRrf;usifoljzpfonf/ jrefrmhpD;yGm;a&;bPfrS bPfcGJrefae*smtjzpf tNidrf;pm;,lNyD;? ½dk;rbPfodkY 

1993 ckESpfwGif 0ifa&mufcJhonf/ vuf½SdtcsdefwGif ½dk;rbPf\ 'k-tkyfcsKyfrI'g½dkufwm jzpfonf/

1 2 3 4

5 6 7

8 9

MR. MARTIN PUN tm; &efukefNrdKUwGif arG;zGm;cJhNyD;? &efukefNrdKUESifh ayusif;NrdKUrsm;wGif ynmoif ,lcJhygonf/ olonf w½kwfjynfESifh 

a[mifaumif wdkYwGif (12)ESpfMumESifh tar&duefEdkifiHwGif (18)ESpfMum tvkyfvkyfudkifcJhygonf/ olonf [dkw,fvkyfief;tygt0if vkyfief;

aygif;pHkvkyfudkifcJhNyD;? tar&duefEdkifiH New York Life Insurance ukrÜPD [m0dkiftDuRef;½Hk;cGJ\ Managing Partner tjzpf vkyfudkifcJhonf/ 

1994 ckESpfwGif SPA ukrÜPD\ trIaqmift&m½SdcsKyftjzpf wm0ef,lcJhygonf/ vuf½SdtcsdefwGif olonf SPA ukrÜPD\ 'k-Ouú| tjzpf 

vnf;aumif;? FMI ukrÜPD\ tBuHay;tzGJU0iftjzpfvnf;aumif; aqmif½Gufvsuf½Sdonf/

WIN MAUNG, (deceased) was a retired Colonel. He served as Deputy Divisional Commander and Vice-Adjutant 
General in the Armed Forces and retired from the civil services as a High Court Judge of State Judicial Council. He 
was the Chairman of 3 successful running companies that he had setup. He was the Chair Advisor to the Board of 
FMI Company from 1992 to 2010. He passed away on 7th May, 2010.

OD;0if;armif (uG,fvGef)onf tNidrf;pm; AdkvfrSL;BuD;wpfOD;jzpfonf/ olonf wyfrawmfwGif 'kwyfrrSL;? wGJzufppfa&;csKyf wm0efwdkYESifh 

e,fbufwGif wm0efrsm; tqifhqihfxrf;aqmifcJhNyD;? EdkifiHawmf Oya'jyKaumifpD\ w&m;olBuD;tjzpf tNidrf;pm;,lcJhonf/ olonf 

olxlaxmifcJhonfh ukrÜPD (3)ck\ Ouú| tjzpf aqmif½GufcJhonf/ olonf FMI ukrÜPD\ tBuHay;tzGJU Ouú| tjzpf 1992 ckESpfrS 

2010 ckESpfxd aqmif½GufcJhNyD; 2010 ckESpf? arv(7)&ufaeYwGif uG,fvGefonf/
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2. LE LE WIN, is a career hotelier and joined SPA/FMI Group in 1993. She is currently the Group HR Manager as 
well as the Director cum General Manager of Grand Meeyahta Executive Residence and General Manager of FMI 
Syndication Ltd. and Alternate Director of SPA.

 a':vJhvJh0if; onf [dkw,fvkyfief; uRrf;usifoljzpfNyD;? SPA/FMI tzGJUodkY 1993 ckESpfwGif 0ifa&mufcJhonf/ vuf½SdtcsdefwGif 

olronf ukrÜPDtzGJUtpnf;wpfckvHk;\ 0efxrf;a&;&m refae*smwm0eftjyif Grand Meeyahta Executive Residences 

\ 'g½dkufwmESifh taxGaxGrefae*sm? FMI Syndication Ltd. \ taxGaxGrefae*smESifh SPA ukrÜPD\ tvSnfhus 'g½kdufwm 

wm0efrsm;udkyg yl;wGJxrf;aqmifvsuf½Sdonf/

3. DR. KYAW WIN, is highly respected for his contributions towards Myanmar healthcare sector and well-known 
as a member of several WHO expert committees and author of several textbooks of medicine. He was Myanmar 
Ambassador to many western countries from 1995 to 2005. He joined PHIH in 2005 as a Chief Advisor and 
Consultant Physician. Currently, he is the Chief Executive Officer of Pun Hlaing International Hospital.

 a'gufwmOD;ausmf0if; onf jrefrmEdkifiHusef;rma&;u@odkY pGrf;aqmiftusKd;jyKrIrsm;aMumifh trsm;\ av;pm;MunfñkdrIudkcH&aom 

yk*¾dKvfBuD;wpfOD; jzpfygonf/ urÇmYusef;rma&;tzGJU vufatmuf½Sd ynm½Sif aumfrwDrsm;\ tzGJU0ifwpfOD;jzpfNyD; aq;ynmESifh 

qdkif&m ausmif;oHk;pmtkyfrsm;udk a&;om;jyKpkcJhygonf/ 1995 ckESpfrS 2005 ckESpftxd taemufEdkifiHrsm;wGif jrefrmoHtrwfMuD; 

tjzpf wm0efxrf;aqmifcJhonf/ olonf 2005 ckESpfwGif yef;vdIiftjynfjynfqdkif&maq;½HkodkY tBuHay;t&m½SdcsKyfESifh twdkifyifcH 

orm;awmftBuD;tjzpf 0ifa&mufwm0efxrf;aqmifcJhonf/ vuf½dSwGif yef;vdIiftjynfjynfqdkif&maq;½Hk\ trIaqmif t&m½dScsKyfjzpf 

wm0efxrf;aqmifvsuf½dSygonf/

4. THAN OO, is a Registered Accountant and retired from Myanmar Oil and Gas Enterprise after 25 years of 
service. He joined SPA Project Management Ltd. in 2002 and currently is the Project Director of Orchid Gardens 
Project in FMI Garden Development.

 OD;oef;OD; onf rSwfyHkwif pm&if;udkifjzpfonf/ jrefrmha&eHESifh obm0"gwfaiGUvkyfief;wGif (25)ESpf wm0efxrf;aqmifNyD;aemuf 

tNidrf;pm; ,lcJhonf/ 2002 ckESpfwGif SPA Project Management Ltd. odkY 0ifa&mufcJhNyD;? vuf½SdtcsdefwGif FMI Garden 

Development ukrÜPD vufatmuf½Sd Orchid Garden pDrHudef;\ pDrHudef;'g½dkufwm jzpfonf/

5. LINN MYAING, is a retired Director General from the Ministry of Foreign Affairs. Prior to this assignment he 
also served as Myanmar Ambassador to the United States, France, Netherlands, Belgium, Switzerland, EU, 
UNESCO and Deputy Permanent Representative to the UN in Geneva. He joined SPA in 2006 as Advisor to the 
Board and currently heads the Myanmar Agri-Tech Carbon Capital Ltd., Group Public Relations and Protocol 
Department and is also the Chief Operating Officer of FMI Company.

 OD;vif;NrKdif onf EdkifiHjcm;a&;0efMuD;Xme\ tjidrf;pm;ñTefMum;a&;rSL;csKyf wpfOD;jzpfonf/ ,if;rwdkifrD olonf tar&duefjynfaxmifpk? 

jyifopf? e,fomvef? b,fvf*sD,H? qGdZmvef? tD;,l? ,leufpudk qdkif&m jrefrmoHtrwfBuD;tjzpffvnf;aumif;? *sDeDAmukvor*¾ 

qdkif&m jrefrm'kwd,tNrJwrf;udk,fpm;vS,ftjzpfvnf;aumif; wm0efxrf;aqmifcJhonf/ olonf 2006 ckESpfwGif SPA ukrÜPDodkY 

tBuHay;yk*¾dKvfftjzpf pwif0ifa&mufcJhonf/ vuf½SdwGif Myanmar Agri-Tech Carbon Capital Ltd., Group Public Relations 

and Protocol Department wdkYudk OD;aqmifvsuf½dSNyD;? FMI Company \ vkyfief;qdkif&m trIaqmift&m½dScsKyftjzpfvnf; 

wm0efxrf;aqmifvsuf½Sdonf/

6. TIN HTUT OO, is a retired Director General of the Department of Agricultural Planning, Ministry of Agriculture 
and Irrigation. He established the Agricultural Marketing Service (MIS) which is the essential requirement 
in agriculture sector liberalization. Moreover, he implemented the public-private partnership in vegetable 
seed production and food processing including wine production. He has severed as national and international 
consultant with UN Organizations in the field of agriculture and rural development in Myanmar and other 
developing countries in Asia and the Pacific Region. He joined the SPA/FMI Group after his retirement from the 
civil service and is currently working as the Chief Executive Officer of MAGT and ARDC.
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 OD;wifxG#fOD; onf v,f,mpkdufysdK;a&;ESifh qnfajrmif;0efMuD;Xme? pkdufysdK;a&;pDrHudef;OD;pD;Xme\ tNidrf;pm; ñTefMum;a&;rSL;csKyf 

wpfOD;jzpfonf/ olonf jrefrmhpkdufysdK;a&; toGiful;ajymif;a&;wGif ta&;tMuD;qHk; tcef;u@rSyg0ifaom v,f,mu@ 

aps;uGuf owif;tcsuftvufjzefYcsda&;vkyfief; wnfaxmifjcif;ukdvnf; OD;aqmifí aqmif½GufcJholjzpfonf/ xkdYtjyif 

rsdK;aphxkwfvkyfjcif;tygt0if 0kdifxkwfvkyfjcif;ESifh tpm;tpmtqifhqifh pDrHxkwfvkyfjcif;wGif yk*¾vduESifhtrsm;ykdif tusdK;wl 

yl;aygif;aqmif½Gufjcif; vkyfief;rsm;ukdvnf; taumiftxnfazmf aqmif½GufcJholjzpfonf/ olonf jrefrmekdifiH\ v,f,mu@

ESifh aus;vufa'ozGHUjzdK;wkd;wufa&; pDrHudef;vkyfief;rsm;ukd jynfwGif;üomru? tjcm;zGHUNzdK;qJ EkdifiHrsm;wGifvnf; ukvor*¾ 

tzGJUtpnf;rsm;\ twdkifyifcHtzGJU0ifwpfOD;tjzpf aqmif½GufcJhygonf/ olonf EkdifiH0efxrf;tjzpfrS tNidrf;pm;,lcJhjyD;aemuf SPA/

FMI  ukrÜPDtkyfpkodkY 0ifa&mufcJhNyD; ,cktcg MAGT ESifh ARDC wdkY\ trIaqmift&m½SdcsKyftjzpf wm0efxrf;aqmifvsuf½dSygonf/

7. DR. YE MOE MYINT, holds a Diploma in Animal Husbandry and a Medical Degree (MBBS-Yangon). His 
experiences as a general practioner in the districts and medical officer in a private clinic since 1989, significantly 
contribute towards his work at the Pun Hlaing Interntaional Hospital. He first served as a part time Residential 
Medical Officer (RMO) at PHIH in 2005 and became a full time RMO the next year. From 2006 to 2008, he served 
as a Manager of Pun Hlaing Clinic and Medical Service Manager at PHIH. He became the Assistant Medical 
Director in 2008 and promoted to the rank of Hospital Administrator in 2009, the post he is holding till now.

 a'gufwm&Jrdk;jrifh onf MBBS Yangon ESifh wd&dpämefaq;ukqdkif&m 'DyvdkrmwdkYudk udkifaqmifxm;ol wpfOD;jzpfygonf/ 

1989 ckESpf rSpí e,frsm;wGif taxGaxGa&m*gukq&m0eftjzpf vnf;aumif;? yk*¾vduaq;cef;wGif usef;rma&; t&m½Sdtjzpf 

vnf;aumif; wm0efxrf;aqmifcJh&mrS &½SdonfhtawGUtBuHKrsm;onf yef;vdIifEdkifiHwumaq;½HkwGif ,if;\aqmif½GufcsufwdkYudk 

rsm;pGmtaxmuftul jyKvsuf½dSygonf/ olonf 2005 ckESpfwGif yef;vIdifEdkifiHwumaq;½Hkü tcsdefydkif; Xmaeusef;rma&; t&m½Sdtjzpf 

pwif 0ifa&mufcJhNyD;? 2006 rS 2008 ckESpftxd yef;vdIifaq;cef;wGif refae*smtjzpf vnf;aumif;? yef;vdIifEdkifiHwumaq;½HkwGif 

aq;bufqkdif&m refae*smtjzpf vnf;aumif; wm0efxrf;aqmifcJhNyD;? vufaxmufaq;bufqdkif&mñTefMum;a&;rSL;&mxl;udk 2008 

ckESpfwGif &½SdcJhygonf/ 2009 ckESpfwGif aq;½HktkyfcsKyfa&;rª;tjzpf wdk;jr§ifhcH&NyD;? ,aeYwdkif ,if;&mxl;jzifh wm0efxrf;aqmifvsuf 

½Sdygonf/

8. HISHAMUDDIN KOH, is a Malaysian national and is an agricultural expert with over 35 years of experience 
in Malaysia, Australia and other S.E Asian countries. He worked as a Senior Agriculture Consultant at Myanmar 
Agri-Tech Ltd. from 2005 to 2010. Currently, he is the Chief Operating Officer and one of the panel consultants 
of ARDC.

 MR. HISHAMUDDIN KOH onf rav;½Sm; EdkifiHom;jzpfonf/ rav;½Sm;? MopaMw;vsESifh ta½SUawmiftm½S EdkifiHrsm;wGif 

(35) ESpfausmf pdkufysdK;a&;ynm½Siftjzpf aqmif½GufcJhonf/ olonf Myanmar  Agri-Tech Ltd. \ tBuD;wef; pdkufysdK;a&; 

tBuHay;tjzpf 2005 ckESpfrS 2010 txd wm0efxrf;aqmifcJhonf/ vuf½SdwGif olonf ARDC \ vkyfief;qkdif&mtrIaqmif 

t&m½SdcsKyf ESifh twkdifyifcHtzGJU0iftjzpf aqmif½Gufvsuf½Sdonf/

9. GU CHUN TING, is a Chinese national and specialised as Economists and Logistician throughout his career. He 
started his career in 1970 in Logistic Unit of No. 5 Engineering Department of Hydropower plant. Over last 40 
years, he has been in various positions of logistics and vehicle maintenance division of Beijing Public Transport 
Holdings Ltd. and managed over 20,000 vehicles of the company. He retired as General Manager in 2009. He 
joined the Group's China Auto Division as General Manager in May, 2010.

 MR. GU CHUN TING  onf w½kwfEdkifiHom;jzpfNyD;? ol\ tvkyfoufwrf;wpfavQmufwGif pD;yGm;a&;ESifh avm*spfpwpfynm&yfrsm;wGif 

txl;uRrf;usifaomoltjzpf &yfwnfcJhygonf/ olonf a&tm;vQyfppfpuf½Hkwpfck½Sd trSwf(5) tif*sifeD,mXmerS avm*spfpwpf 

0efxrf;tjzpf 1970 wGif vkyfief;cGifodkY pwif0ifvmcJhygonf/ NyD;cJhaom ESpf(40)twGif; Beijing Public Transport Holdings 

Ltd. wGif avm*spfpwpfESifh armfawmf,mOfxdef;odrf;a&;XmewdkYwGif &mxl;trsKd;rsKd;jzifh wm0efxrf;aqmifcJhNyD;? ukrÜPDydkif 

armfawmf,mOfaygif; (20ç000) udk wm0ef,lxdef;odrf;cJhygonf/ 2009 ckESpfwGif taxGaxGrefae*sm&mxl;rS tem;,lcJhygonf/ 

2010 jynfhESpf? arvwGif FMI ukrÜPDtkyfpkrS China Auto Division \ taxGaxGrefae*smtjzpf cefYtyfcJhygonf/
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FMI prides itself in taking Corporate Citizenship 
very seriously. Following our relief and 
rehabilitation work for the victims of Cyclone 

Nargis, in particular the construction of the first 
Environmentally Sustainable Pilot Village (ESPV) in 
Auk Pyun Wa nearly two years ago, we have further 
constructed all the religious structures at Auk Pyun 
Wa village, including the village pagoda, monastery, 
ordination hall (thain) and an Arr Yon Khan Tazaung, 
an open hall for the villagers to pay homage to the 
pagoda and conduct religious ceremonies. This was 
done with consultation with the villagers and filled 
a void in their spiritual lives which was completely 
obliterated by the cyclone and has not been replaced. 
 
With the generous donations from the SPA/FMI 
Group, staff members, friends and well-wishers from 
within the country and abroad, and the villagers 
themselves, construction of these religious structures 
began in October 2009 and was completed at the 
end of December 2009. Directors of SPA/FMI Group, 
accompanied by staff members, well-wishers and 
friends visited Auk Pyun Wa village on the of 4th 
of January 2010 and participated in the religious 
ceremony to share merits for the good deeds done.

FMI Co., Ltd. also undertook the National Disaster 
Preparedness Central Committee’s assignment to 
construct a 500-person capacity Cyclone Shelter 
near Kwin Gyi village on Ale Kyun and was honoured, 
together with other construction companies who also 
constructed Cyclone Shelters, by the Chairman of the 
National Disaster Preparedness Central Committee 
and Prime Minister of the Union of Myanmar U Thein 
Sein in Nay Pyi Taw in August of this year.
 
Not only is our firm commitment to active corporate 
citizenship recognized at home, it is also recognized 
in the region as well. In July of this year, Auk Pyun Wa 
ESPV’s Solar Lighting and Water Pumping Project of 
FMI received the 2nd runner-up award in the off-grid 
category of the ASEAN Renewable Energy Projects 
Competition for 2010.
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Anti-Malaria and Health Care activities 
around Maw Tin Estate

Anti-Malaria Program
 
The malaria elimination project being implemented 
jointly by Myanmar Agri-Tech Ltd. (MAGT), Pun Hlaing 
International Hospital (PHIH) and Myanmar Business 
Coalition on AIDs (MBCAs) in the vicinity of Maw 
Tin and Ngwe Saung Estates of MAGT in Ngaputaw 
Township, Ayeyarwaddy Division has successfully 
entered its third year of operation. The malaria 
prevention and control work program, in tandem with 

field research conducted in the 15 villages within a 
5-mile radius of our Maw Tin Estate has resulted in 
more than 95% malaria reduction according to the 
medical researchers and field team reports. The health 
teams are also giving healthcare education to the 
villagers, while at the same time helping to upgrade 
the schools by providing donations and through actual 
rehabilitation of infrastructures.
 
Due to the support given by your Company, and those 
of the entities that are directly involved in the project, 
a research scientist who has been actively taking part 
in this anti-malaria initiative received a doctorate in 
public health this year. The knowledge that he had 
gained from his work in the program will further help 
towards the successful completion of the program.
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Religious structures and Htee Hoisting Ceremony at Auk Pyun Wa village

uREkfyfwdkYukrÜPDonf ukrÜPDEkdifiHom;ukd vGefpGmrSyif 

tav;xm;ygonf/ em*pfrkefwkdif;oifh jynfol 

rsm;twGuf u,fq,fa&;ESifh jyefvnfae&mcsxm; a&;vkyf 

ief;rsm;? txl;ojzifh vGefcJhonfh(2)ESpfu atmuf>yef0wGif 

yxrqkH;aom ]]obm0ywf0ef;usift& a&½SnfwnfwHh ckdifNrJ 

aprnfh a½SUajy;aus;½Gm}} wnfaqmufjcif; vkyfief;udkaqmif 

½GufNyD;aemuf ½GmOD;apwD? bkef;awmfBuD; ausmif;? odrf ESifh 

tm½kHcH wefaqmif;wkdYudk qufvufwnfaqmuf ay;cJhyg 

onf/ þodkY aqmif½Guf&mwGif ½Gmom;rsm;ESifh ñSdEdIif;wdkifyif 

aqmif½Gufay;cJhjcif; jzpfygonf/ rkefwkdif;u vkH;0zsufpD;ypf 

vkdufNyD;? ,ck tcsdeftxdjyefvnf tpm;xkd;ay;&jcif; r½Sdao; 

onfh pdwfykdif;qkdif&m vkdtyfcsufudk jyefvnfjznfhqnf; ay;cJh 

jcif; jzpfygonf/

aqmufvkyfa&;vkyfief;rsm;udk SPA/FMI ukrÜPDtkyfpk? 0efxrf; 

rsm;? rdwfaqGrsm;? jynfwGif;jynfyrS tvSL½Sifrsm;ESifh ½Gmol½Gmom; 

rsm;udk,fwkdif apwemxufoefpGm yg0ifvSL'gef;aiGrsm;jzifh 2009 

ckESpf? atmufwkdbmv wGif pwifcJh&m 'DZifbmvwGif vkH;0 

NyD;pD;oGm;ygonf/ SPA/FMI ukrÜPDtkyfpkrS 'g½kdufwmrsm;onf 

0efxrf;rsm;? tvSL½Sifrsm;ESifh rdwfaqGrsm;vkdufygvsuf 2010 

ck? Zefe0g&Dv (4)&ufaeYwGif atmuf>yef0½GmokdY oGm;a&mufum 

vSL'gef;xm;½SdorQtwGuf a&pufcstrQay;a0cJhNyD; ½GmOD;apwD 

xD;awmfwifyGJwGif yg0ifqifETJcJhMuygonf/ 

FMI ukrÜPDonf trsdK;om;obm0ab;tEÅ&m,f umuG,fapmifh 

a½Smufa&;A[kdaumfrwDrS wm0efay;csuft& tv,fuRef;½Sd 

uGif;BuD;½GmwGif vl (500)qHh rkefwkdif;ckdtaqmufttHkwpfckudk 

wnfaqmufcJhNyD;? rkefwkdif;cdk taqmufttHkrsm; wnfaqmuf 

ay;cJhonfh tjcm;aomaqmufvkyfa&; ukrÜPDrsm;ESifhtwl? ,ckESpf 

Mo*kwfv wGif aejynfawmfü trsdK;om;obm0ab;tEÅ&m,f 

umuG,fapmifha½Smufa&; A[kdaumfrwDOuú| EkdifiHawmf 

0efBuD;csKyf OD;odef;pdef \ csD;usK;*kPfjyKjcif;udk cHcJh&ygonf/

 

FMI ukrÜPD\ ukrÜPDEkdifiHom;wm0efrsm;udk wuf<upGm 

aqmif½GufrIrsm;twGuf jynfwGif;rSmomru a'owGif;rSmyg 

todtrSwfjyKjcif;cH&ygonf/ ,ckESpf Zlvkdifv wGif 2010 

tmqD,H jyefvnfjynfhNzdK;NrJpGrf;tif pDrHudef;NydKifyGJ\ off-grid 

u@wGif obm0ywf0ef;usift& a&½SnfwnfwHhckdifNrJonfh 
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Cyclone Shelter at Kwin Gyi Village

atmuf>yef0½Gm½Sd aea&mifjcnfpGrf;tifokH; rD;ay;jcif;ESifh a&pkyf 

wifjcif; pDrHudef;onf wwd,qkudk qGwfcl;&½SdcJhygonf/

Myanmar Agri-Tech Ltd. (MAGT)? Pun Hlaing 

International Hospital (PHIH) ESifh Myanmar 

Business Coalition on AIDs (MBCAs) wdkY {&m0wDwkdif;? 

iykawmNrdKUe,f½Sd MAGT \ armfwifESifh aiGaqmifpkdufcif; 

teD;w0dkufwGif atmifjrifpGm yl;aygif;aqmif½Gufvsuf½Sdonfh 

iSufzsm;wkdufzsufa&; tpDtpOfonf ,ckESpfwGif (3)ESpfwm 

umvodkY a&muf½SdvmcJhNyD jzpfygonf/ armfwifpkdufcif;\ (5)

rkdif ywf0ef;usiftwGif;½Sd aus;½Gm (15)½GmwGif jyKvkyfonfh 

uGif;qif;okawoevkyfief;ESifh qufpyfaqmif½Gufvsuf½Sdonfh 

iSufzsm;a&m*g umuG,fxdef;csKyfa&; tpDtpOfaMumifh tqkdyg 

a'owGif iSufzsm;a&m*g 95% ausmf usqif;cJhaMumif; 

usef;rma&; okawoDrsm;ESifh uGif;qif;tzGJUrsm;\ tpD&ifcHpm 

rsm;t& od½Sd&ygonf/ 

usef;rma&;apmifha½SmufrItzGJUrS ½Gmol½Gmom;rsm;tm; usef;rma&; 

qkdif&m todynmay;rIrsm;vnf; jyKvkyfay;vsuf½SdNyD;? wpfcsdef 

wnf;rSmyif pmoifausmif;rsm;tm; tvSLaiGrsm; ay;tyf 

vSL'gef;jcif;jzifh tqifhtwef;ukd jr§ifhwifay;um? ausmif; 

taqmuftOD rsm;udkvnf; jyefvnfjyifqif wnfaqmufjcif; 

wkdYudk vkyfaqmifay;vsuf ½Sdygonf/

FMI ukrÜPDESifh þpDrHudef;wGif wkduf½kdufyg0ifywfoufaeaom 

ukrÜPDrsm;\ ulnDaxmufyHhrIrsm;aMumifh iSufzsm;wkdufzsuf 

a&; tpDtpOfwGif yg0ifvIyf½Sm;vsuf½Sdonfh okawoDq&m0ef 

wpfOD;onf ,ckESpfwGif jynfolYusef;rma&; txl;jyK a'gufwm 

bGJUudk &½SdcJhygonf/ þtpDtpOfwGif yg0ifvkyfaqmif cJhrIaMumifh 

&½SdcJhaom todynmrsm;onf tpDtpOf atmifjrifNyD;qkH;ap&ef 

twGuf taxmuftul ydkrdkjzpfaprnf jzpfygonf/
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Income Contribution by Sectors
vkyfief;u@tvdkuf 0ifaiG&½dSrI

Your company income for the year ended 31st March, 
2010 was K. 1,114 million which was contributed 
by automobile sector 31%, services sector 2%, real 
estate sector 54% and other income 13% respectively. 
Other income comprise of the net income from sale of 
investments.

FMI ukrÜPD\ 31-3-2010 &ufaeYwGif ukefqHk;aom b@m 

a&;ESpftwGuf pkpkaygif;0ifaiGrSm usyf 1ç114 oef; jzpf&m? 

armfawmf,mOf vkyfief;u@rS 31%? 0efaqmifrIu@rS 2%? 

tdrf&mazmfxkwfwnfaqmufa&;u@rS 54% ESifh tjcm;0ifaiG 

13% toD;oD;&½Sdygonf/ tjcm;0ifaiGrSm &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrIrsm; 

a&mif;csjcif;rS&aiG jzpfygonf/

31%

Automobile2%

Services

Real Estate

54%
    Others

13%

Investments Distribution by Sectors
vkyfief;u@tvdkuf &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrI

Your company continued to engage in the business 
of investment holding which include investments in 
financial services sector, automobile sector, real estate 
sector, agriculture sector, manufacturing & industries 
sector and services sector. The investments made by 
your company are recorded at cost in the books of 
company (Updated to the date of this report) having 
a total historic value of K. 16,285 million.

FMI ukrÜPDonf &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrIvkyfief;udk qufvuf aqmif½Guf 

vsuf½SdjyD;? b@ma&;0efaqmifrIu@? armfawmf,mOfvkyfief; 

u@? tdrf&mazmfxkwfwnfaqmufa&;u@? pdkufysdK;a&;u@?  

pufrIukefxkwfu@ ESifh 0efaqmifrIu@ wdkYwGif &if;ESD;jr§KyfESH 

xm;ygonf/ &if;ESD;jr§KyfESHrIrsm;tm; ukrÜPDpm&if;pmtkyfwGif 

rl&if;wefzdk;twdkif; (tpD&ifcHpmwifonfhaeYtxd) pm&if;a&;oGif; 

xm;jyD; pkpkaygif;wefbdk;rSm usyf 16ç285 oef;ausmf jzpfygonf/

    Services

34%

Agriculture

4%

4%

Mfg. &

Industries

Automobile

      21%

10%

   Financial

   Services

 28%

Real Estate
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Usage and Distribution of Income
0ifaiGcGJa0oHk;pGJrI

Comparison of Income and Expenses
toHk;p&dwfESifh tjrwfaiG EdIif;,SOfazmfjycsuf

Your company income for this year was increased 
marginally to K. 1,114 million, but the expenses 
decreased by 4% to K. 302 million. As a result, 
net profit distributable to shareholders increased 
by 2% to K. 812 million.

FMI ukrÜPDtaeESifh 0ifaiGusyf 1ç114 oef; &½dScJh&m 

,cifESpfESifh EIdif;,SOfvQif rqdkoavmufom wdk;wufcJh 

aomfvnf; toHk;p&dwfrSm usyf 302 oef; odkY 4% 

usqif;cJhygonf/ xdkYaMumifh tpk½S,f,m½Sifrsm;odkY 

cGJa0ay;Edkifonfh tom;wif tjrwfaiGrSm 2% wdk;í usyf 

812 oef; jzpfygonf/

Out of total income of K. 1,114 million for this year, 
19% was used for operating expenses, 8% was 
provided as managers' share of profit and 73% was 
distributed to shareholders.

pkpkaygif;0ifaiGusyf 1ç114 oef; teuf 19% tm; vkyfief; 

toHk;p&dwftjzpf oHk;pGJjyD;? 8% tm; Managers' Share of 

Profit   tjzpf cGJa0í 73% tm; tpk½S,f,m½Sifrsm;xHodkY 

cGJa0Edkifygonf/

Net Profit Distributable

        73%

Managers' Share

of Profit

 

      8%

        19%

Operating
Expenses
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company continued to engage in the business of 
investment holding during the year.

RESULTS

The state of the company's affair at March 31, 2010 is 
set out in the balance sheet on page (46). The results 
for the year are set out in the statement of income on 
page (47).

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up 
to the date of this report were:

U Theim Wai
U Myat Thin Aung
U Aung Win Khaing
U Kyaw Paing
U Than Aung
U Than Tun
Professor Yi Yi Myint
U Tin Maung Win
U Ne Lin Oo
U Tun Tun

In accordance with the company's Articles of 
Association, U Theim Wai, U Kyaw Paing and U Than 
Tun retired and, being eligible, offer themselves for 
re-election.

The directors have the pleasure in submitting their annual report and audited financial statements for 
the year ended March 31, 2010.

DIVIDENDS

A final dividend at the rate of 12.5% of par value, 
per share, amounting to K 922,000,000/- has 
been proposed per resolution made at the Board of 
Directors Meeting of the Company held on the 8th of 
October, 2010.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to re-appoint the auditors 
Messrs. U Hla Tun and Associates Limited.

On behalf of the Board,

Kyaw Paing
Managing Director

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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We are also required to report, in accordance with 
Section 145 of the Myanmar Companies Act, to the 
members of the Company, on the accounts examined by 
us. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

As stated in Note 4 to the financial statements, the 
investments made in various companies and projects 
were carried at cost. In the absence of share market 
reports, audited financial statements and valuation 
reports of all the invested companies and projects, we 
were unable to ascertain as to the impairment loss of the 
investments and also the return on these investments 
that should be provided in the accounts.

Opinion
In our opinion,

( i )  except for any adjustments relating to matters in 
Note 4 mentioned above the Company's financial 
statements are properly drawn up in conformity 
with the provisions of the Myanmar Companies Act 
and the Myanmar Accounting Standards so as to 
give a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the Company as of March 31, 2010 and of its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the year 
then ended, according to the best of our information 
and explanations given to us and as shown by the 
books of the Company.

(ii) we have obtained all the information and 
explanations we have required; and

(iii) the books and records required by the Act to be 
kept by the Company have been maintained in 
accordance with Section 130 of the Myanmar 
Companies Act.

Certified Public Accountants and Financial Consultants

Shwegon Plaza
64(B) Komin Kochin Road, (1st Floor)
Bahan Township, Yangon, Myanmar.
Tel : (0951) 541495, 554351
Fax : (0951) 554351
E.mail : <hlatuncpa@mptmail.net.mm>

To the Members of
First Myanmar Investment Company Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 
of First Myanmar Investment Company Limited, which 
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2010 and 
the income statements, statement of changes in equity 
and cash flow statement for the year then ended and 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility 
for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with Myanmar Accounting Standards and the provisions of 
the Myanmar Companies Act. This responsibility includes: 
devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting 
controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that 
assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use 
or disposition; and transactions are properly authorized 
and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the 
preparation of true and fair Income Statement and 
Balance Sheet and to maintain accountability of assets; 
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; 
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in 
the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with Myanmar Standards on 
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Certified Public Accountants
U Hla Tun & Associates Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Shwegon Plaza, 64(b), (1st floor)

Komin Kochin Road, Bahan Township, Yangon.

(Maung Maung Aung)
B.Com, C.P.A.

(Htun Aye)
B.A., B.L., C.P.A.

Ref: F. 8/C.8 (1117/2010)        Date: August 12, 2010
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Tun Tun
Director

Kyaw Paing
Managing Director

BALANCE SHEET 
As at 31 March 2010      
Currency - Myanmar Kyats

 Note 2010 2009            

ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property and Equipment-Net 3 5,770,399 4,932,084 
Investment 4 14,681,660,724 14,696,044,980 
Total Non-current Assets  14,687,431,123 14,700,977,064

Current Assets
Prepayment and Advances 5 48,818,550 9,088,756 
Accounts Receivable 6 1,071,919,213 1,005,045,000 
Accounts Receivable-Other 7 70,500 25,244,806 
Cash and Bank balances 8 2,579,792 16,543,552 
Total Current Assets  1,123,388,055 1,055,922,114 
Total Assets  15,810,819,178 15,756,899,178 

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
Shareholders' Equity
Authorised Capital
15,000,000 ordinary shares of
K. 1,000 each  15,000,000,000 15,000,000,000
Issued and Paid Up Capital 9 7,376,000,000 7,376,000,000 
7,376,000 ordinary shares of
K. 1,000 each, fully paid-up 

Reserves and Retained Earnings
Share Premium  7,136,916,200 7,136,916,200 
Retained Earnings  1,122,599,649 1,047,864,118
Total Shareholders' Equity  15,635,515,849 15,560,780,318 

Current Liabilities
Unclaimed Dividends  88,123,225 80,626,825 
Accounts Payable 10 2,365,851 46,588,064 
Accrued Expenses 11 32,031,464 32,290,624 
Provision for Tax 12 52,782,789 36,613,347 
Total Current Liabilities  175,303,329 196,118,860 
Shareholders' Equity and Liabilities  15,810,819,178 15,756,899,178 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

Authenticated by Directors:
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Tun Tun
Director

Kyaw Paing
Managing Director

INCOME STATEMENT
For The Year Ended 31 March 2010
Currency - Myanmar Kyats

 Note 2010  2009                

INCOME
Dividends 13 968,772,500 1,019,995,000 
Net Income from Sale of
Investments (Taxed) 14 145,660,722 34,398,000 
Bank Interest  1,500 647,154 
Service Income  - 57,400,000 
Other Income  - - 
  1,114,434,722 1,112,440,154 

EXPENDITURES
Managing Agent Fees 15 (73,760,000) (66,698,101)
Managers' Share of Profit 16 (90,259,504) (88,752,206)
Administrative and General Expenses 17 (137,315,650) (147,965,457)
Asset Written off  (764,037) -
  (302,099,191) (303,415,764)
Profit on Ordinary Activities Before Taxation  812,335,531 809,024,390 
Income Tax for 2006-2007 financial year  - (254,533)
Income Tax Provision  - (10,000,000)
NET PROFIT AFTER TAXATION  812,335,531 798,769,857 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

Authenticated by Directors
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Tun Tun
Director

Kyaw Paing
Managing Director

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
For The Year Ended 31 March 2010
Currency - Myanmar Kyats

 
  2010 2009

SHARE CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of year  7,376,000,000 6,605,611,000 
Scrips shares issued for the year  - 770,389,000 
Balance at year end  7,376,000,000 7,376,000,000 

SHARE PREMIUM
Balance at beginning of year  7,136,916,200 7,136,916,200 
Bonus Share issued for the year  - - 
Balance at Year end  7,136,916,200 7,136,916,200 

RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of year  1,047,864,118 1,539,935,911 
Donation  - (300,000,000)
Net Profit after taxation  812,335,531 798,769,857 
Dividend  (737,600,000) (990,841,650)
Balance at Year end  1,122,599,649 1,047,864,118 
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY  15,635,515,849 15,560,780,318 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

Authenticated by Directors
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Tun Tun
Director

Kyaw Paing
Managing Director

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For The Year Ended March 31, 2010
Currency - Myanmar Kyats

 2010 2009

Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax for the year 828,504,973 809,024,390
Adjustments for Donation - (300,000,000)
Depreciation and Amortization 1,791,823 1,551,474
Fixed Assets Written Off 764,037 -
Interest Income (1,500) (647,154)
Net income from sale of investments (161,830,164) (34,398,000)
Dividend income (968,772,500) (1,019,995,000)
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes (299,543,331) (544,464,290)
Working capital changes
(Increase)/decrease in prepayment and advances (24,629,794) (5,350,423)
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable (103,169,213) 125,000,000
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable-other 25,174,306 12,588,533
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable (44,222,213) 26,441,865
Increase/(decrease) in accrued expenses (259,160) 64,577
Cash Generated from Operation (446,649,405) (385,719,738)
Income-tax paid (15,100,000) (1,254,533)
Net cash used in operating activities (461,749,405) (386,974,271)
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of new shares - (18,250,000)
Proceed from sale of investments 176,214,420 38,250,000
Proceed from sale of property and equipment - -
Purchase of property and equipment (3,394,175) (61,000)
Interest received 1,500 647,154
Dividend received 1,005,067,500 584,950,000
Net cash provided by investing activities 1,177,889,245 605,536,154
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceed from issue of share capital - 770,389,000
Dividend paid (730,103,600) (989,661,050)
Net cash used in financing activities (730,103,600) (219,272,050)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (13,963,760) (710,167)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 16,543,552 17,253,719
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,579,792 16,543,552

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

Authenticated by Directors      
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended March 31, 2010

1.0 General

"FIRST MYANMAR INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED"  is a Public Company and incorporated on 3 July 1992 as per 
Certificate of Incorporation No.159 of 1992-93 under the Myanmar Companies Act. The Company has received the 
Certificate for Commencement of Business dated October 30, 1992.

The main activity of the Company is investment holding by purchasing shares in other companies and receiving 
dividend income from the investments.

2.0 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

 2.1 Accounting Period
  The accounting year is from April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, the mandatory income year end under the 

Myanmar Income Tax Law.

 2.2 Presentation of Financial Statements
  The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Myanmar Accounting Standards and same 

as in previous years.

 2.3 Property & Equipment
  Property and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated on a 

straight-line method and the rates of depreciation are as follows: -
   Office Equipment 10%-20%
   Furniture  5%
   Motor Cycle 20%
   Renovation Cost 20%

 2.4 Investments
  Investments are stated at cost.

 2.5 Revenue Recognition
  Dividend income on investments and sales of investments are recognized under accrual basis.

3.0 Property And Equipment

The detailed movements are as follows :

   Office Furniture Motorcycle Leasehold 2010 2009
   Equipment    Total Total
Cost
 At 1 April 2009  13,517,037 1,075,500 318,500 8,938,669 23,849,706 23,788,706
 Written Off  (2,664,552) (100,000) - - (2,764,552) -
 Addition for the year 3,394,175 - - - 3,394,175 61,000
 Disposal for the year - - - - - -
   14,246,660 975,500 318,500 8,938,669 24,479,329 23,849,706
 Accumulated Depreciation
 At 1 April 2009  (9,366,935) (293,519) (318,499) (8,938,669) (18,917,622) (17,366,148)
 Written Off  1,983,848 16,667 - - 2,000,515 -
 Charge for the year  (1,741,382) (50,442) - - (1,791,824) (1,551,474)
 Disposal for the year - - - - - -
   (9,124,469) (327,294) (318,499) (8,938,669) (18,708,931) (18,917,622)
 Net Book Value 5,122,191 648,206 1 - 5,770,399 4,932,084
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4.0 Investments

 Details of investments (at cost) made by the Company are as follows: -
     
  2010  2009

( 1 )  Yoma Bank Ltd. 1,638,116,548 1,638,116,548
( 2 )  F.M.I Syndication Ltd. 2,749,017,848 2,749,017,848
( 3 )  SPA Motorcycle Ltd. 1,450,123,200 1,450,123,200
( 4 )  May Enterprise Ltd (SPA Motors)  186,326,400 186,326,400
( 5 )  Pun Hlaing International Hospital Ltd. 5,541,490,000 5,541,490,000
( 6 )  Wood Technology Industries Ltd. (WTI) 585,165,550 585,165,550
( 7 )  Mandalay Cement Industries Co., Ltd. - 1,737,239,570
( 8 )  Shine Laundry Ltd. 6,830,000 6,830,000
( 9 )  Myanmar Suzuki Motor Co., Ltd. 114,764,108 114,764,108
(10) F.M.I Garden Development Ltd. 122,450,000 122,450,000
(11) Myanmar Nissan Co., Ltd. - 7,812,500
(12) Seven Golden Gates Co., Ltd. 7,812,500 -
(13) SPA Elevator & Escalator 3,000,000 3,000,000
(14) Chinthe Concrete Ltd. - 10,634,256
(15) Yoma Thitsar Commercial Co., Ltd. 10,000,000 10,000,000
(16) Myanmar Agri-Tech Limited 500,000,000 500,000,000
(17) Yoma Yazar Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 1,762,239,570 25,000,000
(18) Myanmar Agri-Tech Carbon Capital Ltd. 1,500,000 1,500,000
(19) Agribusiness & Rural Development Consultant Ltd. 2,750,000 2,750,000
(20) Myanmar Concrete Industries Ltd. - 150,000
(21) Yangon Sand Industries Ltd. - 3,600,000
(22) Forest Product Joint Venture Ltd. 75,000 75,000
  14,681,660,724 14,696,044,980

It is observed during the year that

 ( i )  Exchange of 19.5% shareholding ratio of Mandalay Cement Industries Co. Ltd, held by the Company with 
40% shareholding ratio of Yoma Yazar Co. Ltd held by Yangon Land Co. Ltd, an affiliate of SPA Group, at 
equal value.

 (ii) Disposal of following Investments 
   - Yangon Sand Industries Ltd.
   - Myanmar Concrete Industries Ltd.
   - Chinthe Concrete Ltd.

5.0  Prepayments And Advances

Details are as follows.
   
 2010 2009

Office rental (Mandalay) 1,650,000 2,550,000
IT service charges (Hi Com) 1,012,500 4,725,000
Medical insurance - 720,836
Subscription fee 6,550 35,600
Phone bill 49,500 57,320
Advance capital gain tax 16,100,000 1,000,000
Advance-Other 30,000,000 -
 48,818,550 9,088,756
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6.0 Accounts Receivable

Details are as follows.

 2010 2009

Dividend from FMI Syndication Ltd. 385,000,000 385,000,000
Dividend from SPA Motorcycle Ltd. - 500,000,000
Dividend from Forest Product Joint Venture - 45,000
Dividend from May Enterprise Ltd (SPA Motors) 170,000,000 120,000,000
Dividend from Yoma Yazar Manufacturing Co. Ltd. 180,000,000 -
Dividend from SPA Elevator & Escalator 20,000,000 -
Dividend from FMI Garden Development Ltd. 213,750,000 -
Receivable from sale of investment 85,500,000 -
Receivable from Serge Pun & Associates (Myanmar ) Ltd. 17,669,213 -
 1,071,919,213 1,005,045,000

7.0 Accounts Receivable-Other

Details are as follows.

 2010 2009

FMI Trading centre - 25,070,442
Others receivable 70,500 174,364
 70,500 25,244,806

8.0 Cash And Bank Balances

Cash and bank balances consist of:

     2010 2009

Cash on hand (Yangon) - Kyats 49,669 32,267
  - US$ - 945,000
Cash on hand (Mandalay)   43,269 77,326
Cash in Bank  - Yoma Bank – Current deposit 2,427,550 15,448,399
  - Yomo Bank – Saving deposit 47,700 28,955
  - MICB – Kyats 6,104 6,104
  - MICB – US$ 895.49 @ Ks 6.143 5,500 5,500
    2,579,792 16,543,552
   

9.0 Issued And Paid Up Capital

 No further issue of shares was made during the year.

10.0 Account Payable

 2010 2009

Yoma Thitsar Commercial Co. Ltd. 2,365,851 -
Serge Pun & Associates (Myanmar) Ltd. - 46,588,064
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11.0 Accrued Expenses

Details are as follows: -

 2010 2009

Provision for AGM expenses 30,000,000 30,000,000
Professional fees 1,200,000 1,242,000
Others 831,464 1,048,624
 32,031,464 32,290,624

12.0 Provision For Tax

 Represents provision for corporate income tax and capital gain tax on sales of investments, as follows: -

 2010 2009

Income tax provision  10,000,000 10,000,000
Capital gain tax on sales of Investments 42,782,789 26,613,347
 52,782,789 36,613,347

13.0 Dividends Income

Represents dividend income from:

  2010 2009

FMI Syndication Ltd. 385,000,000 385,000,000
SPA Motorcycle Ltd. 120,000,000 500,000,000
May Enterprise Ltd (SPA Motors) 50,000,000 120,000,000
SPA Elevator & Escalator 20,000,000 10,000,000
Myanmar Concrete Industries Ltd. - 4,950,000
Forest Product Joint Venture Ltd 22,500 45,000
FMI Garden Development Ltd. 213,750,000 -
Yoma Yarzar Manufacturing Co. Ltd 180,000,000 -
 968,772,500 1,019,995,000

14.0 Net Income From Sales Of Investments (Taxed)

 Represents net gain on sales of investments after deduction of 10% capital gain tax and details are as follows: -

 2010 2009

First Myanmar Construction Co Ltd. - 34,398,000
Yangon Sand Industries Ltd. 33,219,600 -
Myanmar Concrete Industries Ltd. 40,369,000 -
Chinthe Concrete Ltd. 62,532,644 -
Sales of Apartment 9,539,478 -
 145,660,722 34,398,000

10% Capital Gain Tax of Kyat 16,169,442 was provided in the accounts and advance tax of Kyat 15,100,000 was 
paid during the income year 2009-2010.
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15.0 Managing Agent Fee (Kyat 73,760,000)

Represents managing agent fee paid to Serge Pun & Associates (Myanmar) Ltd, which is calculated at 1% per annum 
on paid up capital, as approved by the Shareholders' Meeting.

16.0 Managers' Share Of Profit (Kyat 90,259,504)

Represents managers' share of profit paid to Serge Pun & Associates (Myanmar) Ltd, which is calculated at 10% on 
net profit, as approved by the Board of Directors on 22 July 1992 and reconfirmed on 20 September, 2006.

17.0 Administrative And General Expenses

 The above consist of:

  2010 2009

Office rental 25,814,443 26,324,282
A.G.M expenses 31,962,110 28,384,615
Meeting expenses 733,640 331,650
Advertising 25,000 -
Staff salary 2,921,100 3,612,800
Staff bonus - 515,500
Staff training 36,000 -
SSB contribution 32,440 42,425
Staff Welfare 840,000 -
Nay Pyi Taw trip - 5,900
Travelling allowances 9,044,720 8,545,380
Meal allowances 6,047,480 5,696,920
Uniform allowances 479,500 502,412
Stationery and printing 696,336 3,257,503
Entertainment 727,920 221,198
Local traveling 422,100 444,320
Computer expenses 1,626,891 2,117,543
Duty tax and stamping 169,420 649,242
Utility charges (MDY) - 56,298
Repair and maintenance (Vehicle) 409,600 67,000
Repair and maintenance (Building) 19,250 -
Repair and maintenance (Office Equipment) 182,167 -
Gift and present 9,298,835 1,864,125
Telex and fax 793,734 940,831
Repair and maintenance - 144,845
Subscription fee 121,500 172,753
Email Expenses 622,110 -
Registration fee 30,000 21,075
Fuel 1,318,806 300,000
Household expenses 34,500 56,580
Mandalay trip - 25,500
Medical insurance 1,679,134 1,089,550
IT services charges 4,050,000 4,165,560
YCDC tax 488,627 5,440
Municiple tax for building 1,300 -
Renewal of licence 20,000 -
Renewal of vehicle (Cycle) - -
Donation 4,512,230 347,940
Audit fees 1,200,000 1,242,000
Depreciation and amortization 1,791,823 1,551,474
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Exchange (gain/loss) 144,400 (42,800)
Miscellaneous 90,470 114,490
Postage charges 147,552 461,115
Relief allowance - 210,000
Retirement pay - 715,000
Volunteer expenses - 145,650
GSM phone awarded to directors and advisors - 25,977,000
Signboard fees - 475,200
Share Trading operation expenses 27,660,896 27,181,608
Electricity charges 38,932 -
Shareholders Report Expenses 1,013,700 -
Bank Charges 66,984 25,534
 137,315,650 147,965,457

18.0 Related Party Transactions

Significant related party transactions during the year were as follows:

 ( i )   Managing Agent fee of Kyat 73.76 million for year 2009-2010 and Kyat 66.69 million for year 2008-2009 
were paid to Serge Pun and Associates (Myanmar) Ltd.

 (i i)  Managers' Share of Profit of Kyat 90.26 million for year 2009-2010 and Kyat 88.75 million for year 2008-
2009 were also paid to Serge Pun and Associates (Myanmar) Ltd.

 (iii)  The investments were made in its affiliated companies and projects except investment in Forest Product 
Joint Venture Ltd, as stated in Note (4). As stated in Note No.13, the dividend incomes from the investments 
in its affiliates and projects were Kyat 969 million for 2009-2010 and Kyat 1,020 million for 2008-2009.

 (iv) The following office rental were paid as follows:
 
   2010 2009

  To FMI Syndication Ltd. 24,914,443 25,424,282
  To Yoma Bank Ltd. 900,000 900,000
   25,814,443 26,324,282

 (v)  Exchange of 19.5% Share holding ratio of Mandalay Cement Industries Co., Ltd held by the Company with 
40% shareholding of ratio of Yoma Yazar Co. Ltd held by Yangon Land Co. Ltd, an affiliate of SPA Group at 
equal value was made during the year 2009-2010.

 (vi)  IT Service Charges of Kyat 4.05 million for 2009-2010 and Kyat 4.17 million for 2008-2009 were paid to 
Hi-Com Co. Ltd, an affiliate of SPA Group.

19.0 Taxation

Final assessments for income tax for the income years 2007-2008 and 2008-2009 were received in June, 2010 and 
no adjustment for additional tax due as per assessments was made in the Accounts.

20.0 Events After Balance Sheet Date

We understand that shares of investment in Myanmar Suzuki Motor Co. Ltd., were transferred in May, 2010.

21.0 Contingent Liabilities

As confirmed by the Finance Manager, there is no significant contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2010.
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